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About the Artist

In mid-March, 1959, at the age of26, Robert Dacey's first impression of the Boulder Valley was shaped
from the Davidson Mesa overlook along the BoulderlDenver Turnpike. After a five-day drive to
"escape" Cleveland, Ohio, he knew he had discovered a new place to put down roots. He knew he'd
found the place he wanted to call "home."

Today, over forty years later, Robert Dacey defines himself as an artist, writer, and retired marketing,
advertising, and public relations executive. His emphasis now is as an artist and writer. Originally
trained as an artist and designer (The Cleveland Institute of Art and CU Boulder), he began drawing
and painting the region's mining and agricultural structures during the I960s. It was not until 1994 that
he embarked on the serious mission to graphically record and interpret what he describes as 'The 20th
Century Monuments of Boulder County's Mining and Agricultural Past."

Working from early sketches and current photographs, Robert Dacey is seeking to capture images of
mining and agricultural sites and structures that are rapidly disappearing from the region's landscape.
"Unprecedented growth and development are reinventing the region," Dacey says, "and the Boulder
County that forever captured me, and others, in 1959 no longer exists. New generations are discover-
ing a vastly different Boulder, and I hope they will value and respect their discovery as much as previ-
ous generations.

We are fortunate to have Mr. Dacey's painting of the Lohr Mcintosh bam on the cover. On the tab pages
of this book are additional reproductions by Robert Dacey of Boulder County agricultural structures.

About the Cover

The Lohr Mcintosh bam is landmarked because it is among the oldest strucrures that dot the rural land-
scape near Longmont, Colorado. Located in an area that experienced early settlement, the structure is
among the few agricultural survivors that provide a visible link to a way of life that is rapidly disap-
pearing in Boulder County. It stands in its original context and possesses a special character defined by
the environmental setting, architecture, economy, traditions and most important of all, its history.

Homesteader George R. Mcintosh, with help from neighbors, built the two-story bam in 1881. Today
it represents a barn of an average 1880s Boulder County farmer. It is important for its fine display of
craftsmanship found in its timber-frame construction. The 120-year-old structure is also a fine exam-
ple of a North American bam that can yield important information about the "art and layout of a work
building." For example, the methods of erecting the timber frame of the barn is unusual. Because of its
exposure to strong westerly winds. the bam's post-and-bean joinery system was designed to be less
rigid so it could sway in the wind. This flexibility to destructive winds has contributed to the bam's
preservation through the years. The structure is a testimony to the integrity and economy with which
builders shaped native materials into monumental structures.
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PostOffice Box471 • Boulder, Colorado 80306

Administrative Services Department
Financial Services Division

2020 131h Streel • Boulder. Colorado 80302 • [3031441-3505

7/16/01

Citizens of Boulder County
Board of County Commissioners

I am pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Boulder
County, Colorado, for the year ended December 31, 2000. This report was prepared by the
County's Financial Services Department and responsibility for both the accuracy of the
presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the County. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the data as presented are
accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to set forth fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the
County. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
County's financial activity have been included.

This report includes all funds and account groups of the County. Boulder County provides
the full range of services contemplated by statute; general government functions, public
protection and safety, health, social services, parks and open space, public improvements,
road and bridge operations, planning and zoning.

The report also includes the following entities, organizations and activities: The District
Attorney's otlice of the 20th Judicial District, including funds seized under C.R.S.16-13-300
(Abatement of Public Nuisance Law) and C.R.S. 16-13-50 I to 511 (Colorado Contraband
Forfeiture Act), the Boulder County Retirement Savings Trust, the Public Trustee, the
Gunbarrel Public Improvement District, the Boulder County Health Department and the
Boulder County Recycling and Composting Authority. The Health Department and the
Recycling and Composting Authority are discretely presented component units of Boulder
County.

1

Jono L.Mendez
County CommLssiOner

Ronald K. SteworT
County CommLssIonef

Paul Danish
County Commissioner



This report is presented in four main sections:

'The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, a copy of the Certiticate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the year ended December 31.
1999. Boulder County's organization chart and a list of principal otlicials.

'The Financial Section includes the general purpose financial statements and the
combining and individual n.mdand account group financial statements and schedules,
as well as the auditors' opinion on the tinancial statements and schedules.

'The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis. In addition, a sub-section includes S.E.c.
disclosure intormation related to the County's Series 19%, Series 1998, and Series
2000A/2000B open space bond issues.

ECONOMIC CONDITIO:\' AND OUTLOOK

Boulder County's boundaries extend trom the continental divide on the west to the farm and
bnch lands on the plains to the east. The County's geographical diversity is mirrored in its
rconomy which ranges from agriculture to high technology industries.

Boulder County has a tight labor market, making it ditlicult for businesses to hire needed
bmployees. This is reflected in the County's December, 2000 unemployment rate 01'2.4%,
tom pared to an equally low statewide rate for December of 2.7%. The tight labor market has
treated employment opportunities for several segments of County residents previously
overlooked - retired persons, people with disabilities and people moving from welfare to work,
because of the Federal Welfare Reform Program. At the same time, the low unemployment
~ates stifle economic growth to some extent.
I
New businesses to the County such as Sun Microsystems, Inc., and Level 3 Communications
~re expected to keep the local economy strong. Other factors which will playa positive role
~re contracted work being done by private sector companies for federal labs and the
~ecognition of the County as the Internet capital of the state. 'The decision of businesses to
locate in Boulder County is related to the fact that the County offers new residents and
businesses a highly educated work force, the University of Colorado and an environment
;whicl~!ncludes mountains, thousands of acres of open space, parks, bike paths and other
amemtles.

2



I
I
I
I

Population growth in Colorado and in Boulder County has caused an outcn' from citizens
who are more concerned about the surging population than any other one issue. It is
estimated that Boulder County is now losing 5,869 acres of farmland per year to development.
Boulder County, the Cit\. of Boulder and some of the other cities in the County have
implemented, or are considering implementing policies which will serve to substantially reduce
the rate of growth in coming years.

While the general supply of housing in the County is increasing, the supply of al1erdable
housing is decreasing. Continuing ellerts on the part of municipalities to limit residential and
industrial growth are exacerbating the problem ofatrordable housing. There are a growing
number of persons who work in the County, but live elsewhere in order to lind al1'ordable
housing. The increased trallic and associated air pollution due to the longer commuting
distances are secondary problems with which elected ofticials must deal.

An economic issue which will impact Boulder County will come as a result of the 1998
statewide voter approval l'or the City of Broomlield to become its own city/county. The new
county will begin operations on November 15,200 I. After the results of the election became
known the Commissioner's implemented a multi-year plan to prepare for the loss of revenue
associated with Broomfield becoming a county of it's own. If circumstances do change there
is enough flexibility in the budget to make necessary adjustments without jeopardizing the
tiscal well being of the County.

Broomtield's Interlocken Business Park continues to expand at a rapid pace. It is expected
that tenants of the business park will eventually employ 18,000 people, many of whom may
choose to live in Boulder County. These commuters will tax an already overburdened
transportation system.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the year: In 2000, Boulder County made significant achievements related to the
following goals:

* A strong commitment to better serve citizens
* Regional approaches to some of our most complex policy issues
* Continued work on preservation of open space

3



Uetails are as follows:

I-service to citizens - In mid 1999, the County completed an addition to the St. Vrain
Complex in Longmont. The addition provides the work space which allows an increase in the
number of Social Service employees available to serve the rapidly growing needs of this part
of the County.

The County broke ground on a site at 1750 33rd Street in east Boulder for the construction of
a 30,000 square fiJot building to house the Clerk and Recorder's Otlice, presently located in
the Courthouse Complex in downtown Boulder. The move to the new facility is expected to
take place during the summer of2000. Parking for 200 vehicles is available at the site. This
will satisty the needs of citizens and employees, unlike the present site where parking is a daily
problem.

The County purchased land on Main Street in Longmont to be the site of an east county
auxiliary courthouse. The building is expected to be completed in 200 I.

Boulder County has begun improving the content, look and functionality of its web site to
provide timely infomlation to the public. Among documents available to view is a
consolidated form of the current budget for Boulder County.

In November, 2000, the voters approved a continuance of the county sales and use tax to
provide for capital facilities tor non-profit organizations. A new fund has been set up for the
Worthy Cause revenues generated by the approved 0.05% sales and use tax beginning January
I, 2001 and ending December 3 I, 2003.

'Regionalism - The Recycling and Composting Authority, composed of members from the
County and each of the cities and towns in the County, has completed the construction,
shakedown and acceptance testing of the new regional recycling facility. The facility will be
opened for operations in July, 200 I. The land and facility is funded by a one tenth of one
percent sales/use tax approved by the voters in 1994. Discussion is underway for Boulder
County to assume ownership of the facility when the intergovernmental agreement expires in
12/31/2001.

'Open Space - In November, 2000, the voters approved an extension of the existing 0.10
percent recycling sales tax to December 3 I, 2009. In addition, voters approved the issuance
of bonded debt of up to $80,800,000, The proceeds of the sale of the bonds in 2001 will be
used to continue the acquisition and preservation of open space through outright purchase,
donations and purchase of conservation easements. At the present time, the County has
preserved over 60,000 acres of open space for future generations.
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For the Future: Boulder County expects to make significant strides toward meeting its goal of
diverting 50% of its solid waste from landfills as the Recycling and Composting Authority
begins operations. Another program whose work is expected to continue for a number of
years into the future is the continued acquisition of available open space lands. The mitigation
of growth and all of its attendant problems will continue to be a focus of efforts for the next
several years.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (I) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

Single Audit: As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the County is responsible
for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to guarantee compliance
with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure
is subject to periodic evaluation by management and the County's external auditors.

As a part of the County's single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal
control structure, including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs, as
well as to determine that the County has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The
results of the County's single audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 provided no
instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of
applicable laws and regulations.

Budgeting controls: The County maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of
Commissioners. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds,
and the proprietary (internal service) fund are included in the annual appropriated budget.
The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed
the appropriated amount) is established by function and activity within the general fund, and is
established at the fund level for the special revenue funds, the capital projects fund and the
proprietary fund. Additional budgetary control is maintained through the encumbrance of
amounts for purchases and other contractual commitments and by the release of purchase
orders to vendors. Encumbered amounts lapse at December 31 and generally are
reappropriated as part of the following year's budget.
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General Government Functions: The following schedule presents a summary of general fund,
special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and component unit revenues for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2000, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in
relation to prior year revenues.

Revenues Amount Percent Increase Percent of
of Total (Decrease) Increase
Revenues from 1999 (Decrease)

Taxes $97,214,983 48.H $7,836,295 8.8%

Intergovernmental 34,868,100 17.4% 1,058,265 3.1%

Charges for Services 10,329,119 5.2% (335,115) (3.1% )

Other Revenue 9,933,013 5.0% (4,584,942) (31.6%)

Contributions 10,171 0% (1,709) (14.4%)

Interest on Investments 7,303,057 3.6% 2,528,215 52.9%

Licenses/Permits 1,913,886 1.0% 65,073 3.5%

Fines and Forfeitures 337,849 .2% (50,403) (13.0%)

Total Revenues 161,910,178 80.8% 6,515,679 4.2%

Other Financing Sources 38,560,553 19.2% 38,560,553 n/a

Total-Revenues 200,470,731 100.0% 45,076,232 29.0%
and Other Financing
Sources

Category variances in excess of $1 million from 1999 are explained as follows:

Taxes - Tax revenues are a combination of three distinct types; property taxes, sales taxes
and specific ownership taxes. Approximately $3 million of the increase was from sales tax
revenues, approximately $.7 million was from specific ownership taxes and the balance of
$4.0 million was from property taxes. A portion of the increase in property tax was placed in
the general fund balance in anticipation of Broomfield becoming its own county with a
subsequent loss of revenue.

Intergovernmental- The increase is attributable to the dissolution of the Boulder Regional
Communications Center on January I, 2000 and its inclusion in the General Fund.

Other Revenues - The decrease is due primarily to the sale of the Administrative Services
Building in 1999 with no similar sale in 2000.
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Interest on Investments - The increase is due to the sale of the Open Space Capital
Improvement Fund Bonds, Series 2000N2000B and their investment along with an increase
in the County's average yield on investments from 5.09% in 1999 to 6.25% in 2000.

Other Financing Sources - The increase is due to the sale of the Open Space Capital
Improvement Fund Bonds, Series 2000N2000B.

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund, special revenue funds, capital
projects funds, and component unit expenditures for the fiscal year ended December 3 I, 2000,
and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

Expenditures Amount Percent Increase Percent of
of Total (Decrease) Increase

Expenditures from 1998 (Decrease)

General Government $53,791,828 28.4% ($5,209,991) (8.8% )

Health & Welfare 28,985,919 15.3% 834,935 3.0%

Conservation 40,280,094 21.3% 7,203,916 21.8%

Public Safety 24,400,127 12.9% 3,177,526 15.0%

Highways & Streets 10,868,312 5.7% 49,272 0.5%

Economic Development 5,605,172 3.0% (67,504) (1.2%)

Intergovernmental 1,057,813 0.6% (818,444) (43.6)

Urban Redev/Housing 1,204,369 0.6% 270,173 28.9%

Sanitation 7,367,593 3.9% 5,306,810 257.5%

Debt Service: 9,360,000 4.9% 3,130,000 50.2%
Principal

Interest 6,431,117 3.4% 1,458,964 29.3%

Total Expenditures 189,352,344 100.0% 15,335,657 8.8%

I Other Financing Uses I 0 I n/a I n/a I n/a I
Total Expenditures + 189,352,344 100.0% 15,335,657 8.8%
Other Financing Uses
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Category variances in excess of$I,OOO,OOOfrom 1999 are explained as follows:
I
General Government - the $5 million decrease is the result of a $12 million decrease due to a
bne time purchase of land associated with the Northwest Parkway in 1999 offset by a $7
~iIlion increase for new employees, operational increases and general salary and fringe benefit
increases.

!conservation - The majority of the increase was for open space land purchases made from the
.sale of the Open Space Capital Improvement Fund Bonds, Series 2000N2000B in 2000.

Public Safety - The increase was for 5 new employees, the dissolution of the Boulder Regional
Communications Center on January I, 2000 and its inclusion in the General Fund, the
purchase of additional affordable housing and for general salary and operational costs

Sanitation - The increase is due to the construction of the Recycling and Composting Center.

Debt Service Principal - The increase is due to the advanced refunding of $3 million in bonds
from the Colorado Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1994.

Debt Service Interest - The increase is due to the issuance of$38.5 million in Open Space
Capital Improvement Fund Bonds, Series 2000N2000B.

General Fund Balance: The General Fund balance increased from 1999 to 2000. The balance
contains approximately $2 million in specific projects which were planned in 2000 but which
didn't get completed. These dollars will be supplementally appropriated to the 200 I budget to
complete the projects. The Board has a policy of budgeting a fund balance in the General
Fund equal to at least 5% of expected annual expenditures. This amount is sufficient to
reduce the likelihood of the County having to enter the short -term debt market to pay for
current operating expenditures. The $19,772,434 fund balance at the end of2000 exceeds the
5% policy.

Enterprise Operations: The County has no enterprise operations for the year 2000.

Pension Trust Fund Operations: Boulder County sponsors a 40 IK defined contribution plan
called the Boulder County Retirement Savings Trust. It provides a number of investment
options into which employees self direct their contributions and contributions made on their
behalf by the County. The net assets of the Plan decreased from $82,063,637 to
$80,103,118 during 2000. This amount is available and sufficient to meet all obligations of
the plan.
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Debt Administration: At December 31, :WOO, the Counly had no general obligation (G. 0.)
bonded indebtedness. Section 30-26-30), CRS., 1973, allows a genera) obligation debt
ceiling of one and one half percent of assessed valuation of a county. Boulder County,
therelore, has a G.O. debt capacity 01'$60,295,282 (based on the 2000 assessed valuation of
$4,0) 9,685.480), none of which has been used. The County does have a number of debt
issues outstanding (other than G.O.) at December 3),2000 and they are described as follows:
i\lore information on these can be found in the Financial Section, (NOles To Financial
Statements. "'ole E- Bonds Payahle)

a) Highway Users' Tax Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 1992. issued by Boulder County in
October, 1992, in the amount of $) ,000,000 ..

b) Boulder County, Colorado Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1994, issued in October,
1994, in the amount 01'$36,025,000, lor the purpose of acquiring open space lands.

c) The Gunbarrel General Improvement Disuict General Obligation Bonds, Combined
Series, issued in September, 1994, in the amount 01'$3,600,000 for the purposes of
making road improvements and acquiring open space. The district is a component unit
of Boulder County government.

d) Boulder County. Colorado Open Space Capital Improvement Trust Fund Bonds,
Series 1996, issued in January, 1996, in the amount 01'$35,000,000 for the purpose of
acquiring open space, with no increase in any County taxes.

e) Boulder County, Colorado Open Space Capital Improvement Trust Fund Bonds,
Series 1998, issued in February, 1998 in the amount 01'$35,000,000, for the purpose
of acquiring open space, with no increase in any County taxes ..

t) Boulder County, Colorado Open Space Capital Improvement Trust Fund Bonds,
Series 2000N2000B, issued in February, 2000 in the amount 01'$38,575,000, for the
purpose of acquiring open space, with no increase in any County taxes.

The County also issued $50 million in Open Space Capital Improvement Trust Fund Bonds,
Series 200 I, in March of 200 I.

9



S.E.c. Disclosure Information: As a pan of the 1996 and 1998 bond issuances, the County
has undenaken to provide ongoing disclosure of certain information as required bv Section
(b)(5)(i) of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule I 5c2-12 under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended. The County will provide a) Annual Financial Inlormation and b)
Audited Financial Statements l"r each fiscal year on or before December 3 I of 1996 and each
subsequelll liscal year to each then existing nationally recognized municipal securities
information repository (NR1\lSIR), as recognized Irom time to time by the Securities and
Exchange Commission and state information depository (SID) as operated or designated by
the state. If a Material hem occurs while any bonds arc outstanding the County will provide
a Material Evem Notice in a timelv manner to the Municipal Securities Rule making board and
the SID, if any.

The annual tinancial inlormation can be found in the 1,)llowing places in this document:

.Statistical Section
Table 6-Property Tax Levies & Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Table 7-Assessed And Estimated Actual Value Of Property - Last Ten
Assessed Year s
Table 9-Property Tax Rates - County Levy Detailed By Fund - Last Ten
Assessed/Collected Years
Table 12-Principal Taxpayers - December 31,2000
S.E.c. Disclosure subsection:

A) Boulder Coullly History of Funding Sources for Open Space
Land Acquisition

B) Projected Open Space Revenues vs. Commitments
C) General Fund Information
D) Open Space Sales/Use Tax Collections History

*Financial Section
Page 19

Cash Management: The County Treasurer is responsible for the collection, distribution and
investment of alimonies for the County filllds, exclusive of the Boulder County Retirement
Trust and Health Department funds. It is the Treasurer's policy to adhere to the following
principles which are listed in priority order:

*Minimize risk of principal
*Provide for liquidity needed to meet cash flow demands of the County
*Achieve the highest reasonable rate of return on invested funds.
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Authorized investments are controlled by Colorado Statutes and include, but are not limited to
the following:

* U.S. Treasury securities
* US. Agency securitics
* Certificated of Deposit in eligible banks
* Repurchasc agrcements collateralized by authorized investments
* Local Government Pooled Trusts
* Highest rated commercial paper.

Income on investments for :WOO was $7,303,057. The average yield on invcstmcnts managed
by the Treasurer was 6.~5 % in ~OOO,compared to 5.09% in 1999. The County's ~OOO
investment performance ranks lilVorably when compared to average yield rates of -1.76% for
90 day U.S Treasury bills.

Risk Management: The County maintains a limited selt~insll1ance program in an internal
service fund. The program is made up ofa selt:funded medical and dental plan which began in
1983, a workers' compensation plan which began in 1990, and a property/casualty plan which
bcgan in 1985. The County assumes the risk for the first $1~5,000 for each mcdical claim, the
first $300,000 for each worker's compensation occurrence, the lirst $100,000 for each
property occurrence and the first S 150,000 lor each liability occurrence, except for aircraft
liability coverage which has no County retention. Third party insurance is purchased to
protect the County above these amounts. The County also carries a crime policy with a
$10,000 deductible, and an equipment breakdown policy with a $2,500 deductible. Medical
and dental claims are processed by a third party administrator, the property/casualty plan is
partially self-administered, and the workers' compensation plan is fully self-administered. The
primary source of funding for these programs is property taxes. Resources to pay potential
claims are accumulated in an internal service fund. Various risk control techniques including
employee training in the areas of accident prevention, supervision, ergonomics, cultural
diversity and sexual harassment have been implemented to minimize losses. In 1999, the
County joined a risk purchasing group which will enable the County to take advantage of
group buying power lor its excess liability insurance.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Ind~p~nd~nt Audit: Stat~ statut~s require an annual audit by independent certilied public
accountants. The accounting linn of Grant Thornton LLP was s~lected by the County's
Board of Commissioners to conduct its audits for a tive year period. beginning with the one
for 1996. In addition to meeting the requir~ments set forth in state statutes. the audit also was

I
designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 01\1B
Circular A-133. The auditors' report on the general purpose Iinancial statements and
combining and individual timd statements and schedules is included in the IinanciaJ section of
this report. The auditors' reports related specitically to the single audit are issued separately
by Grant Thormon LLP.
I

Revenue and Expenditure Limitations: In November 1992, Colorado voters passed an
amendment to AI1icle X. Section 20 of the State Constitution. This amendment is commonly
Iknown as Amendment One, or TABOR (Taxpayer Bill of Rights). and it limits the revenue
raising and spending abilities of state and local governments. It requires voter approval for

l
any increase in the millle,y In addition, it requires that 3% of lis cal year spending be set
aside in an "emergency reserve". In 2000, the County voters approved a ballot issue which
exempted certain amounts received by the County from the amendment's revenue and
Iexpenditure limitations. Boulder County has compared its 2000 revenues and expenditures

I
to its limits under the amendment. Should it have exceeded any limits, the disposition of the
excess will be handled in accordance with TABOR.
I

IAwards: The Government Finance Oflicers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certiticate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
Boulder County for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award

Irecognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local
Igovernment fmancial reports.

l
In order to be awarded a Certiticate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efticiently organized comprehensive annual tinancial report, whose contents
conform to program standards. Such comprehensive annual financial report must sat is!)' both
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal
requirements.

IA Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Boulder County has
received a Certificate of Achievement tor the last ten consecutive years (tiscal years ended
1990-1999). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of
Achievement program requirements. and we are submitting it to GFOA.

12
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Grant Thornton ~

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of County Commissioners
Boulder County, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of Boulder County,
Colorado as of and for the year ended December 3I, 2000, as lisred in the table of contents. These
general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Covert/ment Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-purpose fmancial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall general-purpose fmaneial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose fmancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Boulder County, Colorado as of December 31, 2000, and the results of its
operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Covert/ment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30,
2001, on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Coven/ment Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and account group fmancial
statements and schedules and the Road and Bridge Information listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose
financial statements. Such additional information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the general-purpose finaneial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in
all material respects when considered in relation to the general-purpose fmancial statements taken as
a whole.

Denver, Colorado
March 30, 2001

SUite 1800
1600 Broadway
Denver. CO 80202
Tel:303 861.5555
fax: 3038314646 1 9
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Boulder County, Colorado

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

A55ET5 AND OTHER DEBITS

General

Governmental Fund Types
Special
Revenue

Capital
Projects

Proprietary
Fund Type
Internal
Service

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Investments
Restricted cash
Property taxes receivable
Due from other governmental units
I .
Iinterest receivable
.County goods and services receivable
'Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Land, buildings and equipment
Ilnventory

I
OTHER DEBITS
Amount available for retirement of
!generallong-term debt
Amounts to be provided for payment
'of general long-term debt

$22,136,399 $29,483,566 $17,104,636

4,472,174 17,788 90,000
60,620,341 9,892,898 7,539,668

1,666,492
541,007 334,179 272,184

2,997,729 3,429,654 2,165,519
603,798 1,361,849 489,687
10,974 57,861

53,998 33,248

$4,052,779

62,989
428,833
29,027
18,252

Total assets and other debits

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.

$91,436,420
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$46,277,535 $27,661,694 $4,591,880



General
Fixed Assets

Health
Department

Reporting Entity
Tolals Totals

(Memorandum (Memorandum
Only) Only)

Fiduciary
Fund Type

Trust
and Agency

Account Groups
General
Long.term

Debt

Totals
(Memorandum

Only)

Primary
Government

Component Units
Recycling &
Composling
Authority 2000 1999

$8,915,307 $81,692,687 $1,435,743 $83,128,430 $70,116,814
79,680,787 79,680,787 79,680,787 81,574,407

453,369 5,033,331 18,985 5,052.316 4,178.938
78,052.907 78,052,907 72,751.485
1,666,492 547.235 $1,053,415 3,267,142 1,820.178
1,210,359 1,210.359 1.130.903

506,121 9.527,856 23,018 9,550,874 8,501,017
2,484,361 2,484.361 2,239,421

87,087 13,268 100,355 135,997
$313,722,211 313,722,211 532,031 8,804,791 323,059,033 277,200,326

87,248 87,248 95,504

$90,000

122,089,587

90,000

122,089,587 309,899

90,000

122,399,486

90,000

93,080,912

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

$89,555,584 $313,722,211 $122,179,587 $695,424,911

23

$2,880,179 $9,858,206 $708,163,296 $612,915,882
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Boulder County, Colorado

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED)

December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31,1999)

Total liabilities

$5,575,43B $409,437

82,520 416,375
12,208,491 7,942,668

131,384

946,173 159,752

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

LIABILITIES
I

Accounts payable,
Undistributed taxes and other collections
Du~to other funds,
Deferred revenue

I .
Due to other governmental unIts
I

Accrued liabilities
Bo~ds payable
Escrows payable
Estimated health and denial claims
Estimated insurance claims
Other Liabilities

I
EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
lnv~stment in general fixed assets
I

Contributed capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
I

Fund balance
R~served

Emergencies
MSO ADAD contract
frepaid expenditures and inventory
Employee retirement benefits
Debt service
Escrow fees
Unreserved
pesignated for subsequent year
Designated for open space land maintenance
Undesignated

Total equity and other credits

Total liabilities, equity and other credits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

General

$2,53S,B31

1,516,081
60,622,341

3,646,119

3,057,600

2B6,014
71,663,986

24

Governmental Fund Types
Special
Revenue

16,607
18,960,613

Capital
Pro/eets

1,031
8,929,263

Proprietary
Fund Type
Internal
ServIce

$88,938

5,538

6,648

1,057,793
2,099,359

15,127
3,273,403



Account Groups
General

Health
Department

Reporting Entity
Totals Tolals

(Memorandum (Memorandum
Only) Only)

Fiduciary
Fund Type

Trust
and Agency

General
Fixed Assets

Long-term
Debt

Totals
(Memorandum

Only)

Primary
Government

Component Units
Recycling &
Composting
Authority 2000 1999

I

$87,074 $8,696,718 $308,010 $1,046,809 $10,051,537 $4,489,674
8,448,176 8,448,176 8,448,176 8,016,334
463,847 2,484,361 2,484,361 2,239,421

80,773,500 471,258 81,244,758 76,573,967
453,369 584,753 250,000 834,753 857,849

$959,587 5,718,279 392,008 6,606 6,116,893 6,148,930
121,220,000 121,220,000 121,220,000 92,005,000

3,057,600 3,057,600 2,449,060
1,057,793 1,057,793 1,489,832
2,099,359 2,099,359 1,390,311
318,779 318,779 1,150,324

9,452,466 122,179,587 234,459,318 1,421,276 1,053,415 236,934,009 196,810,702

$313,722,211 313,722,211 532,031 8,804,791 323,059,033 277,200,326
1,913,520 1,913,520 1,913,520
(595,043) (595,043) (702,575)

2,706,085 36,456 2,742,541 2,742,823
124,203

137,520 13,268 150,788 208,815
80,103,118 80,103,118 80,103,118 82,063,637

90,000 90,000 90,000
1,331,456 1,331,456 1,987,456

4,169,177 265,435 4,434,612 12,451,405
253,597 253,597 253,597

57,133,952 611,713 57,745,665 37,771,973
80,103,118 313,722,211 460,965,593 1,458,903 8,804,791 471,229,287 416,105,180

$89,555,584 $313,722,211 $122,179,587 $695,424,911 $2,880,179 $9,858,206 $708,163,296 $612,915,882
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Boulder County, Colorado

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
ALL CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
TYPES, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Governmental Fund Types
Special

General Revenue
Capital
Projects

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses),
B~ndproceeds
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Operating transfers in from primary government
Operating transfers out to component unit
I Total other financing sources (uses)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCE5 OVER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES

I
Fund balances, beginning of year

I
Fund balances, end of year

Tni accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

38,506,348 7,349,191 7,936,289
7,017,689 613,505 32,648.900
1,204,369

21,796,578 2,603,549
19,964,763

1,952,679 3,652,493
765,080 10,103,232

1,057,813

6,360,000
6,431,117

71,242,743 45,344,546 53,376,306

12,191,122 6,014,622 (31,685,596)

35,575,000
3,000,000
(3,000,000)

176,289 6,297,777
(3,961,996) (140,258) (2,386,259)

(3,554,549) (7,367,593)
(7,516,545) (7,331,562) 39,486,518

Revenue,
Taxes
Li~ensesand permits
Interest on investments
Int'ergovernmental,
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Other revenue

I
Expenditures,
Current
qeneral government
qonservation
Urban redevelopmenUhousing
~ublicsafety
Health and welfare
Economic development
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Intergovernmental
Debt service
Principal,
Interest and fiscal charges

Total revenue

Total expenditures

26

$61,966,178
791,244

3,287,738
3,862,332
9,976,975
337,849

3,211,549
83,433,865

4,674,577

15,097,857

$19,772,434

$17,183,679
57,873

1,747,829
26,123,139

352,144

5,894,504
51,359,168

(1,316,940)

28,633,862

$27,316,922

$18,065.126

2,267,490
614,943

743,151
21,690,710

7,800,922

10,931,509

$18,732,431



Health
Department

Reporting Entity
Totals Totals

(Memorandum (Memorandum
Only) Only)

Totals
(Memorandum

Only)

Primary
Government

$97,214,983
849,117

7,303,057
30,600,414
10,329,119

337,849

9,849,204
156,483,743

Component Units
Recycling &
Composting
Authority

$1,064,769

4,267,686

10,171
83,809

5,426,435

2000

$97,214,983
1,913,886
7,303,057

34,868,100
10,329,119

337,849
10,171

9,933,013
161,910,178

1999

$89,378,688
1,848,813
4,774,842

33,809,866
10,664,234

388,252
11,880

14,517,955
155,394,530

53,791,828 53,791,828 59,001,819
40,280,094 40,280,094 33,076,178
1,204,369 1,204,369 934,196

24,400,127 24,400,127 21,222,601
19,964,763 9,021,156 28,985,919 28,150,984
5,605,172 5,605,172 5,672,676
10,868,312 10,868,312 10,819,040

$7,367,593 7,367,593 2,060,783
1,057,813 1,057,813 1,876,257

6,360,000 6,360,000 6,230,000
6,431,117 6,431,117 4,972,153

169,963,595 9,021,156 7,367,593 186,352,344 174,016,687

(13,479,852) (3,594,721) (7,367,593) (24,442,166) (18,622,157)

35,575,000 35,575,000
3,000,000 3,000,000
(3,000,000) (3,000,000)
6,474,066 6,474,066 9,014,949
(6,488,513) (6,488,513) (9,014,949)

3,554,549 7,367,593 10,922,142 5,328,133
(10,922,142) (10,922,142) (5,328,133)
24,638,411 3,554,549 7,367,593 35,560,553

11,158,559

54,663,228

$65,821,787

(40,172)

967,044

$926,872 $
=====

11,118,387

55,630,272

$66,748,659
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(18,622,157)

74,252,429

$55,630,272



Boulder County, Colorado

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS)
AND ACTUAL - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Year ended December 31, 2000

General Fund Special Revenue Funds
Variance - Variance -
Favorable Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenue
Taxes $61,162,410 $61,966,178 $803,768 $16,547,516 S17,183,679 $636,163
Licenses and permits 533,375 791,244 257,869 40,000 57,873 17,873
Interest on investments 2,000,000 3,287,738 1,287,738 483,667 1,747.829 1,264,162,
Intergove~nmenlal 3,105,773 3,862,332 756,559 19,177,237 18,163,030 (1.014,207)
Charges ~orservices 10,345,839 9,976,975 (368,864) 233,371 352.144 118,773
Fines and forfeitures 459,942 337,849 (122,093),

Contributions
Other revenue 2,166,192 3,211,549 1,045,357 6,909,838 5,395,443 (1,514,395)

I
Total revenue 79,773,531 83,433,865 3,660,334 43,391,629 42,899,998 (491,631)

Expenditures
Current I

41,459,125 38,506,348General government 2,952,777 6,699,060 6,646,220 52,840
Conservation 7,392,751 7,017,689 375,062 534,573 534,132 441,
Urban redevelopmentfhousing 1,244,512 1,204,369 40,143,

22,240,276Public safety 21,796,578 443,698 3,909,701 10,000 3,899,701
Health and welfare 19,503,241 18,371,377 1,131,864
Economic development 1,952,679 1,952,679
Highways and streets 984,062 765,080 218,982 11,929,009 10,103,232 1,825.777
Sanjtati~n,

1,063,357 1,057,813Intergovernmental 5,544
Debt service
Principal ,
Interest and fiscal chargesI Total expenditures 75,273,405 71,242,743 4,030,662 43,638,941 36,722,774 6,916,167

Excess (deficiency) of revenue

I
over expenditures 4,500,126 12,191,122 7,690,996 (247,312) 6,177,224 6,424,536

Other financing sources (uses)
Bond Proceeds
Proceeds lof refunding bonds,
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Operating transfers in
Operating' transfers out (3,831,170) (3,961,996) (130,826) (125,245) (126,571) (1,326),
Operating transfers in from,
primary government
Operating' transfers out to component unit (3,554,549) (3,554,549) (13,362,406) (7,367,593) 5,994,813

Total tither financing sources (uses) (7,385,719) (7,516,545) (130,826) (13,487,651) (7,494,164) 5,993,487

I
EXCESS (~EFICIENCY) OF REVENUE AND
OTHER FI~ANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES (S2,885,593) 4,674,577 $7,560,170 (S13,734,963) (1,316,940) S12,418,023

I ., f 15,097,857 25,927,777Fund balances, beglnmng 0 year

I
$19,772,434 S24,610,837Fund bala,"!ces, end of year

The acco~panying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Totals (Memorandum Only)
Capital Projects Funds Primary Government

Variance - Variance -
Favorable Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$18,755,138 $18,065,126 ($690,012) $96,465,064 $97,214,983 $749,919
573,375 849,117 275,742

286,200 2,267,490 1,981,290 2,769,867 7,303,057 4,533,190
614,943 614,943 22,283,010 22,640,305 357,295

10,579,210 10,329,119 (250,091)
459,942 337,849 (122,093)

293,423 743,151 449,728 9,369,453 9,350,143 (19,310)
19,334,761 21,690,710 2,355,949 142,499,921 148,024,573 5,524,652

10,557,732 7,936,289 2,621,443 58,715,917 53,088,857 5,627,060
43,910,593 32,648,900 11,261,693 51,837,917 40,200,721 11,637,196

1,244,512 1,204,369 40,143
26,149,977 21,806,578 4,343,399
19,503,241 18,371,377 1,131,864
1,952,679 1,952,679

12,913,071 10,868,312 2,044,759

1,063,357 1,057,813 5,544

6,760,000 6,360,000 400,000 6,760,000 6,360,000 400,000
6,593,162 6,431,117 162,065 6,593,182 6,431,117 162,065

67,821,507 53,376,306 14,445,201 186,733,853 161,341,823 25,392,030

(48,486,746) (31,685,596) 16,801,150 (44,233,932) (13,317,250) 30,916,682

35,418,543 35,575,000 156,457 35,418,543 35,575,000 156,457
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
(3,000,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000)

6,210,683 6,297,777 87,094 6,210,683 6,297,777 87,094
(2,387,090) (2,386,259) 831 (6,343,505) (6,474,826) (131,321)

I (16,916,955) (10,922,142) 5,994,813
39,242,136 39,486,518 244,382 18,368,766 24,475,809 6,107,043

I ($9,244,610) 7,800,922 $17,045,532 . ($25,865,166) 11 ,158,559 $37,023,725

I 10,931,509 51,957,143

$18,732,431 $63,115,702
Continued
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Boulder County, Colorado

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS)

AND ACTUAL - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31, 2000

Health Department

Budget Actual

Variance.
Favorable

(Unfavorable) Budget Actual

$13,362,406 7,367,593 5,994,813

453,962 (13,362,406) (7,367,593) 5,994,813

$

13,362,406 7,367,593 (5,994,813)

522,130 13,362,406 7,367,593 5,994,813

13,362,406 7,367,593 (5,994,813)

$453,962 $ ~$ =~

522,130

(40,172)
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$926,872

967,044

9,021,156

9,021,156

3,554,549

3,554,549

$1,064,769 $1,892

4,267,686 (108,445)

10,171 10,171
83,809 28,214

5,426,435 (68,168)

(3,594,721 )

4,376,131

55,595
5,494,603

9,543,286

9,543,286

3,554,549

3,554,549

($494,134)

$1,062,877

(4,048,683)

Total revenue

over expenditures

Revenue
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intere~ton investments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Other revenue

I
Expenditures
Current
General government
Conservation
Urban redevelopmenUhousing
PUbli~safely
Health and welfare
Econ~mic development
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Intergovernmental
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal chargesI Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue

I
Other financing sources (uses)
Bond Proceeds
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Operating transfers in from
primarY government
Operatin'g transfers out to component unit

Total other financing sources (uses)

I
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES

I
Fund balances, beginning of year

I
Fund balances, end of year
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

I
I
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Budget

$96,465,064
1,636,252
2,769,867
26,659,141
10,579,210

459,942

9,425,048
147,994,524

Tolals (Memorandum Only)
Reporting Entity

Actual

$97,214,983
1,913,886
7,303,057
26,907,991
10,329,119

337,849
10,171

9,433,952
153,451,008

Variance -
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

$749,919
277,634

4,533,190
248,850
(250,091)
(122,093)
10,171
8,904

5,456,484

58,715,917 53,088,857 5,627,060
51,837,917 40,200,721 11,637,196
1,244,512 1,204,369 40,143

26,149,977 21,806,578 4,343,399
29,046,527 27,392,533 1,653,994
1,952,679 1,952,679
12,913,071 10,868,312 2,044,759
13,362,406 7,367,593 5,994,813
1,063,357 1,057,813 5,544

6,760,000 6,360,000 400,000
6,593,182 6,431,117 162,065

209,639,545 177,730,572 31,908,973

(61,645,021 ) (24,279,564) 37,365,457

35,418,543 35,575,000 156,457
3,000,000 3,000,000
(3,000,000) (3,000,000)

6,210,683 6,297,777 87,094
(6,343,505) (6,474,826) (131,321 )

16,916,955 10,922,142 (5,994,813)
(16,916,955) (10,922,142) 5,994,813
35,285,721 35,397,951 112,230

I
I

($26,359,300) 11,118,387

52,924,187

$64,042,574

$37,477,687
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Boulder County, Colorado

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT) - PROPRIETARY FUND-

INTERNAL SERVICE/RISK MANAGEMENT

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31,1999)

2000 1999

Operating Revenue
Charges for services
Charges for services - other funds
Contributions - employee
Contributions - County
Contributions - miscellaneous
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

Operating expenses
General government
General administration
Property and casualty claims
Health and dental claims
Workers' compensation claims

Total expenses

Net operating loss

Nonoperating revenue
Interest on investments

Income (loss) before operating transfer

10, f'perattng trans er 111

I
Net income (loss)

I
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit),
\ beginning of year

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit),
end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$46,446
1,216,565
1,638,127
5,070,879
156,687
19,462

8,148,166

169,899
1,038,379
6,335,563
816,222

8,360,062

(211,897)

304,982

93,085

14,447

107,532

(702,575)

($595,043)

$38,504
1,319,370
1,365,652
4,052,098
239,750
22,541

7,037,915

150,093
843,790

7,235,852
568,540

8,798,275

(1,760,360)

268,067

(1,492,293)

(1,492,293)

789,718

($702,575)



Boulder County, Colorado

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS.
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE.

INTERNAL SERVICE/RISK MANAGEMENT

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

I
I

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from employer
Cash received from employees
Cash received from charges for services
Cash received from miscellaneous sources
Cash paid for general administration
Cash paid for general claims
Cash paid for health and dental claims

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment earnings

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities

Transfer in

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and equivalents, January 1

Cash and equivalents, December 31

Net operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile net operating
loss to net cash used
in operating activities
(Increase) in interest receivable
Decrease (increase) in County goods and
services receivable

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) in prepaid expenses
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
(Decrease) increase in due to other funds
Increase in accrued liabilities
(Decrease) increase in health and dental reserve
Increase in insurance reserve
Increase in other liabilities

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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2000 1999

$5,070,879 $4,052,098
1,638,127 1,365,652
1,247,906 1,097,704

176,149 262,291
(209,729) (116,501)

(1,145,553) (1,225,499)
(6,767,602) (6,812,280)

10,177 (1,376,535)

307,870 268,067

14,447

332,494 (1,108,468)

3,720,285 4,828,753

$4,052,779 $3,720,285

($211,897) ($1,760,360)

(32,028)

5,593 (228,326)
(20,698) 4,184

(3,252) (4,000)
(16,236) 9,370
(27,753) 20,190

387 1,507
(432,039) 423,572
709,048 186,831

7,024 2,525

222,074 383,825

$10,177 ($1,376,535)



Boulder County, Colorado

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUND

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999

Additions
Contributions
Boulder County
Boulder County Employees

Total contributions

Investment (losses) earnings
Total additions

Deductions
Participant benefits
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Net (decrease) increase

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits
Beginning of year

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$3,032,747 $2,905,959
3,793,888 3,381,127
6,826,635 6,287,086

(4,794,100) 16,967,918
2,032,535 23,255,004

3,735,119 3,668,646
257,935 179,261

3,993,054 3,847,907

(1,960,519) 19,407,097

82,063,637 62,656,540

$80,103,118 $82,063,637



Boulder County

'JOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

December 31. 2000

NOTEA . SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

The County is a polItical subdivIsion organized under the statutes of the State of Colorado Ttle County to,
gov€mea by a three-member Board of County CommIssioners <.the Board) Each commISSioner IS elected at
large by the voters of the County and must reSIde In the district for wtllch he or stle is elected There are al':lo
seven other elected officials assessor, clerk and recorder. coroner, shellff, district attorney. tleaSlIrer and
surveyor.

Tt,e County provides a WIde range of services to its resIdents including public safety, highways and streets,
parks and open space. health and SOCIal servIces, public improvements, planning, zoning and general
administration. Water, sanitatIon, fire, utIlities, schools. recreation and Itbrary services are provided to County
residents by a variety of publiC and private entities, dependIng on property locatton.

1. Flf1ancialR~Jlortin.&.EntIty

The Governmental Accountlf1gStandards Board (GASB) in Its Statement No 14 has speCified the criteria to
be used in defining the financial reporting entIty for financial reporting purposes:

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and Its component units.

A primary government is any state, general. purpose local, or special-purpose government which meets
the followlf1g criteria: a) it has a separately elected governing body; b) it is legally separate; and c) It is
fIScally Independent of other state and local governments. A primary government consists of all the
organizations that make up Its legal entity. All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies,
departments, and oHices that are not legally separate are for financial reporting purposes, part of the
primary government.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected oHicials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government IS financially accountable if It
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and it ISable to impose its will on that
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. In general, the nature and significance
of the component unit's relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP),these
financial statements present Boulder County (the primary government) and its component units. The
component units included in the County's reporting entity are reported using the blended and the
discretely presented methods. The blended method reports the financial data of the component unit as
part of the primary government. The blended method is used when either of the following circumstances
are present: 1) the component unit's governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of
the primary government; or 2) the component unit provides services entirely or almost entirely to the
primary government. The discretely presented method is used when a component unit does not meet the
criteria for blending. The component unit columns in the combined financial statements include the
financial data of the County's discrete component units. They are reported in a separate column to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.
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Boulder County, Colorado

NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEA ' SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

1. Financial Reporting Enti\.\' (Continued)

The following component units are Included in the accompanying financial statements:

Disal.tr Prl'se"tlltioll

Boulder County Health Department. This is a quasi.municipal organization organized by authority of state
statute and resolution of the County Commissioners. According to state statute, the Commissioners
appoint the governing board In addition, the County appropriates significant funds tor the Department's
operations.

Boulder County Recycling and Composting Authority - This is a quasi.municipal organization created
through an intergovernmental agreement between Boulder County, the cities of Boulder, Broomfield:
Lafayette, Longmont and Louisville, and the towns of Erie, Jamestown, Lyons. Nederland and Superior. The
Authority's primary source of funding is intergovernmental revenue from Boulder County.

Bleude,/ Prese"tlltioll

Boulder County Retirement Savings Trust (Pension Trust Fund) . This is a trust established by agreement
between the Board of County Commissioners and the Boulder County Board of Retirement for the purpose
of providing retirement benefits exclusively for Boulder County employees.

Gunbarrel General Improvement District Fund. This is a subdivision of the State of Colorado created for
the purpose of constructing certain public improvements to be located within the district and governed by
a board comprised of the County's elected Board of County Commissioners. The District is reported as a
capital projects fund.

Complete financial statements for the individual component units may be obtained at the unit's
administrative offices.

Boulder County Health Department
3450 Broadway
Boulder, CO80304

Gunbarrel General Improvement District
Finance Department
2025 14th Street
Boulder, CO 80306
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Boulder County Recycling and
Composting Authority
1901 63rd Street
Boulder, CO 80301

Boulder County Retirement SavingsTrust
FinanceDepartment
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Boulder County, Colorado

NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31,2000

NOTEA ' SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

2. Measurement Focus BaSIsof Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account groups. A fund
is an independent fIScal and accounting entity with a self.balancing set Of accounts. Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating
compliance with fmance.related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds are
maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account groups are a reporting device to
account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds.

The government has the following fund types and account groups:

Governmental funds are used to account for the County's general government activities. Governmental
fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). "Measurable" means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within th~urrent period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers[al~revenue available if they are
collected within 60 days after year end, Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and
certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes and grant revenue are the primary revenue sources subject to accrual. Property taxes are
reported as a receivable and deferred revenue when the levy is certified and as revenue when due for
collection in the subsequent year. An allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes has not been recorded
since these amounts are not considered material to the financial statements. The County bills and collects
its own property taxes and the taxes for various taxing agencies. Collections and remittance of taxes for the
other taxing agencies are accounted for in the Agency Fund. Expenditures of governmental fund types are
recorded when the related liability is incurred, with the exception of unmatured principal and interest on
capitalized lease obligations and long.term debt.

Governmental funds include the following fund types:

The General lund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Special RevenueFunds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specific
purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects).

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major capital
projects not being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Proprietary funds include the following fund type:

The Internal ServiceFund accounts for operations that provide services to other departments or agencies of
the County on a cost reimbursement basis.

The County applies all applicable GASBpronouncements as well as all applicable FASBpronouncements
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The County has elected not to apply any applicable FASBpronouncements subsequent
to November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for their proprietary activities.
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Boulder County, Colorado

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31,2000

NOTEA - SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

2_ Measurement Focus BasIs of Accounting and BasIs of PresentatIOn(Continued)

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the County 111a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of
others. Trust funds account for assets held by the County under the terms of a formal trust agreement
Fiduciary funds include the folfowll1g fund types:

The Pension Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the proprietary funds, using the
same measurement focus and basis of accounting The pension trust fund accounts for The Boulder
County Retirement Savings Trust.

The Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or have a measurement
focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. These funds are
used to account for assets that the County holds for others in an agency capacity_

Account Groups - The general fixed assefs account group is used to account for fixed assets not accounted
for in proprietary or trust funds. The generallong-ferm debt account group is used to account for general
long-term debt and certain other liabilities that are not specific liabilities of proprietary or trust funds.

3. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The County budgets on a calendar year, US GAAPbasis for all funds except for the Grants and Contingency
Funds. The Grants Fund is budgeted on a grant year basis, while the Contingency Fund has no legalfy
adopted budget; therefore, they are not included in the combined statement of revenue, expenditures and
changes in fund balance - budget (US GAAP)basis and actual.

The following reconciles the inclusion/exclusion of the Grants and Contingency Funds from the combined
statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balance to the combined statement of revenue,
expenditures and changes in fund balance - budget (US GAAPbasis) to actual. Selected reconciling items
are as follows:

Revenue
Expenditures
Other financing
sources

Per
Difference combined

Per Difference due to statement
combined due to Contingency budget
statement Grants Fund Fund and actual

$161,910,178 $8,459,170 $ $153,451,008
(189,352,344) (8,621,772) (180,730,572)

38,560553 162602 38397,951

Excess (deficiency) of
revenue and other
financing sources
over expenditures

Fund balance,
beginning of year

Fund balance,
end of year

11,118,387

55630272
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11,118,387
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Boulder County, Colorado

NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31. 2000

NOTEA . SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

3. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

The following procedures are used by the County Commissioners In establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

(a) The level of budgetary control is established by function and activity within the general fund, and is
established at the fund level for the Special RevenueFunds, the Capital Projects Funds, the Health
Department, and the Recycling & Composting Authorrty.

(b) On or before August 1. all elected officers and department directors submit preliminary budget data
to the Budget Officer.

(c) On or before August 25, the County Assessorsubmits assessedvaluations and other factors required
to compute statutory property tax revenue limits.

(d) On or before October 15, the Budget Officer submits a balanced budget to the Board of County
Commissioners.

(e) A notice is published and a public hearing is held to obtain taxpayer comments, usually in early
October.

(f) In the event a mill levy in excessof the prior year's is required, the Board of County Commissioners
must have the excessapproved by the voters at the November election.

(g) On or before December 10, the County Assessor submits final assessed valuations to all taxing
entities.

(h) The Board of County Commissioners enacts resolutions approving the budget, appropriating the
budget, and setting the mill levies on or before December 15, per Statute 39.1,111, CRS.

(i) Expenditures may not legally exceed the appropriations approved by the Board of County
Commissioners. The appropriations are at the level described in (a) above. Administrative control is
maintained through the County's accounting system, at the appropriation level. Funds may be
reallocated within the appropriation level by departmental administrators without approval of the
Commissioners.

Any increase to the adopted budget requires that a supplemental budget and appropriation be
approved by the Commissioners at a public meeting, with prior published notice of the proposed
change. Budgeted and appropriated amounts are as originally adopted and amended by the Board
of Commissioners throughout the year. Significant budget amendments, by fund type, are as follows
(no amendments to any other fund types):

Special Capital
General revenue projects Proprietary

Original budget $ 75,169,830 $ 52,022,567 $ 25,521,763 $8,578,404
Amendments 7.489,294 5,104025 44,686,834 99,748

Amended budget $_82.652~12.:l $ 5L122.5~~ $ ZQ,2Q8.5.91. ~611l.152

(j) Once levied, property taxes become an enforceable lien on January 1 of the following year and are
payable in two equal installments, on February 28 and June 15. Unpaid taxes become delinquent
March 1 and June 16, but the entire balance may be paid by April 30 without penalty.

(k) At the end of the year, unencumbered appropriations lapse for all funds except for the Grants Fund.
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Boulder County, Colorado

NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEA . SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

4. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under Wllich purchase orders. contracts and other commitments for expenditure
01 monies are recorded In order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the
governmental funds. Open encumbrances lapse at December 31 and must be reissued the following year;
therefore, there are no related reservations of fund balances

5. Equity in Pooled Cash and Investment~

The County accounts for Investments under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 31
(GASB31) which governs accounting for Investments. Investments are carried at amortized cost for those
investments with remaining matunties of less than 12 months when purchased or at fair value for those
investments with maturity dates exceeding 12 months from purchase date.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits and short.term investments with original maturities of three months. or less from the
date of acquIsition.

Except when required by trust agreements, the operating cash of each fund except the Health Department,
and the Retirement Savings Trust is pooled into one bank account not identified with any particular fund.
Cash in excess of operating requirements is invested in government obligations and cash equivalents. The
accounting records for each fund reflect an equity in pooled cash and investments.

Restricted cash in the Capital Projects Fund is composed of funds restricted for debt service expenditures
of the Capital Improvement Trust Fund and the Open SpaceCapital Improvement Fund. Restricted cash in
the Public Trustee Agency Fund is composed of funds restricted by state statute and miscellaneous funds
restricted for use by the Public Trustee. Restricted cash in the General Fund is composed of escrow funds
which are restricted for various purposes.

6. Receivables

Revenuesare recorded when received except for property taxes, which are reported as a receivable when
the levy is certified. All current taxes receivable are offset by the full amount of the deferred revenue.
Taxes are due January 1 following the year levied. The first and second halves become delinquent March 1
and June 16, respectively. Interest receivable and sales tax are accrued in the appropriate funds.

7. Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures

Inventories are valued at cost using the first.inlfirst.out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund,
type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid expenditures. The prepaid assets recorded in the governmental fund types do not reflect current
appropriable resources and thus, an equivalent portion of fund balance is reserved

8. General Fixed Assets

Additions to general fixed assets are recorded as expenditures in the General, Special Revenueand Capital
Projects Funds. Depreciation is not provided on general fixed assets. All assets are recorded at cost (or
estimated historical cost) on the date purchased. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair
market value on the date donated In accordance with state statutes, only items $1,000 or greater are
capitalized.

Public domain, infrastructure fixed assets consisting of certain improvements such as streets, bridges,
curbs and gutters, sidewalks, etc. are not capitalized. These infrastructure assets are expensed In the
appropriate governmental fund when costs are incurred.

40



Boulder County, Colorado

NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEA . SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

9. Capitalized Interest

Interest is capitalized by the County in accordance with Statement of Fmancial Accounting Standards
No. 62, except that amounts which relate to the construction of infrastructure are not capitalized, as it is
the policy of the County not to capitalize such expenditures. No interest expensewas capitalized for the
year ended December 31, 2000.

10. Vacation and Sick LeaveBenefits

County policy allows employees to accumulate unused vacation and SIck leave up to certain maximum
hours. Retiring employees are paid 100% of unused vacation and Sick leave, and employees terminating
for other reasons are paid 100% of vacation and 50% of unused sick leave. Employees hired after June 1,
1987 are not paid for unused sick leave. The County budgets current'year revenue for each year's
anticipated expenditures for such absences and payments for excess vested sick leave. Amounts not
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the general long.
term debt account group.

11. Long.term Obligations

The County records long.term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long.term debt
account group. Other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with current available
financial resources are also recorded in the general long.term debt account group. For governmental fund
types, bond proceeds are reported as an other financing source net of the applicable premium or discount.
Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

12. Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balances represent amounts that are not appropriable or that are legally segregated
for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change. All fund balances not specifically reserved for a particular purpose are considered
undesignated, unreserved fund balances.

13. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GMP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that aHect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenueand expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could diHer from those estimates.

14. Total (Memorandum Only) Columns in Combined Statements

The total columns in the combined statements are presented for comparative purposes only. The
memorandum.only total columns are not intended to present fairly the financial position or results of
operations of the governmental unit as a whole in accordance with US GAAP. Neither are such data
comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.
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Boulder County, Colorado

NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEB . CASH,DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS

In order to facilitate the recording of cash transactIOns and maximize earnings on Investments. the County has
combined the cash and Investments of all primary government funds and maintaIns accountability for each
fund's equity in the pooled cash and Investments. All funds of the County are eligible for investment and may
be combined in an investment instrument to maximize earnings. All pooled cash and Investments are
considered short-term for accounting purposes

The total of cash, depOSitsand investments equaled $167,861.533 and is reflected on the combined balance
sheet as follows:

Equity in pooled
cash and investments

Investments
Restricted cash

Prrmary Component
- government unIts Total

$ 81,692,687 $ 1,435.743 $ 83,128,430
79,680,787 79.680,787
5033,331 18,985 5,052316

$ J 66~06,80:> tl.''-51.Z~8 $JpZ,861.?33
Deposits

Colorado statutes require that local governments use eligible public depositorres as defined by the Public
Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) of 1989. Under the Act, the depOSitory IS required to pledge eligible collateral
having a market value at all times equal to at least 102% of the aggregate public deposits held by the
depository not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Eligible collateral as defined by the Act
primarily includes obligations of, or guarantees by, the U.S. Government, the State of Colorado or any political
subdivision thereof and obligations evidenced by notes secured by first lien mortgages or deeds of trust on real
property.

Deposits are categorized below. Category 1 Includes deposits that are insured; Category 2 includes
collateralized deposits held by the pledging institution's trust department or agent in the County's name, and
Category 3 includes uncollateralized, uninsured deposits.

At December 31,2000, the County's cash deposits had a carrying value of $33,161,175 and a corresponding
bank balance as follows:

Cash on hand
Insured deposits-
Category 1
Deposits collateralized
under PDPA. Category 2

Primary
government

$ 64,055

1,556,084

32830965

$.31,15),.1 0:1

Component
units

$

109,720

1.587636

o$U;;92,35.6

Total

$ 64,055

1,665,804

34,418601

U6~L4M6Q

Investments

Investments are carried at fair value which is defined as cost or amortized cost for investments with a maturity
of less than one year and as market for those investments maturing in more than one year. The County's
investment policy parallels Colorado statutes which specify Investment instruments meeting defined rating and
risk criteria in which local government entities may invest:

• Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities
• Certain international agency securities
• General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
• Bankers' acceptance of certain banks
• Commercial paper
• Local government investment pools. . . . .
• Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorrzed securrtles
• Certain money market funds
• Guaranteed investment contracts.
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NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEB . CASH, DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS(CONTINUED)

The County's investments are categonzed below. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or
registered or for which the secunt,es are held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust
department or agent in the County's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the secunties are held by the broker or dealer, or by their agent but not in the County's name.
Investments in money market funds are not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that
exist in physical or book entry form.

u.s. government securities
Commercial paper
Repurchase agreements

Retirement Savings Trust.
Mutual Funds

Total investments

Categorv Fair
1 _2 ___ 3_ Value

$ 14,396,062 $ . $ . $ 14,396,062
11,899,140 11,899,140
28724369 - - 28724369

$55,019,521. $.;. $~ 55,019,571

79,680787

$U4,ZP_Q,32Jl

Under the terms of the repurchase agreement, the fair values of the collateral securing the agreement is
required to be in excess of 102% of the outstanding invested fund balance. At December 31, 2000, the fair
value of the collateral was $29,299,306.

NOTEC . CHANGESIN GENERALANDCOMPONENTUNIT FIXEDASSETS

Balance at Balance at
January 1, December 31,

2000 Additions Deletions 2000

Primary government
Land $ 186,022,963 $ 37,031,628 $ 1,311,865 $ 221,742,726
Buildings and improvements 57,144,916 3,131,337 3,130,249 57,146,004
Construction in progress 1,555,703 3,518,638 1,122,009 3,952,332
Equipment 29,917,123 7,016,217 6,052,191 30,881,149
Component unit
Health department
Equipment 627,515 87,271 182,755 532,031

Recycling and Composting Authority
Equipment, land rights, and
construction in progress 1932,106 6872685 8,804,791

Total reporting entity $ gZL?PO,322 $ 5L651,ll6 $ 11,Z99 069 $~~O59,9~
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NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTE0 . LONG.TERMOBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of long.term obligations of the County

Primarygovernment
Accruedcompensatedabsences
Bondspayable
Component units
Accruedcompensatedabsences
Health department
Total reporting entity

Balance at Balance at
January 1, December 31.

2000 Additions Deletions 2000

$ 819,786 $ 139,801 $ $ 959,587
92,005,000 38,575,000 (9,360,000) 121,220,000

364 126 (36 227) 309,899
$ 93,120~12 $3)l ..2J,,~+.801 $(~~96,2W $ 1.22,~~8_9i~86

NOTEE . REFUNDEDDEBT

In 2000, the County entered into a refunding transaction whereby bonds were issued to facilitate the
retirement of a portion of the County's Open Space Sales and Use Tax RevenueBonds Series 1994. Certain
proceeds of the Open Space Improvement Trust Fund Bonds, Series 2000A/2000B have been placed in an
irrevocable escrow account and invested by the County Treasurer for the purpose of generating resources for
all future debt service payments of the refunded debt. The refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and
the liability has been removed from the general long.term debt account group. As a result of defeasing the
debt the County was able to defer debt service payments from 2000 to 2006 at a present value cost of
$44,642. The amount of defeased bonds outstanding at December 31,2000 is $2,600,000.

NOTEF . BONDSPAYABLE

The County has issued $1,000,000 in Capital Improvements Trust Fund RevenueBonds (Highway User Tax)
Series 1992. The bonds are payable from revenue distributed to the County from the Colorado highway users
tax fund plus certain investment income. The bonds mature annually beginning in 1994 with final payment in
2003. Interest at rates from 3.75% to 5.50% is payable semiannually. Debt service to maturity is as follows:

Yearending December 31, Principal Interest Total

2001 $ 110,000 $ 19,185 $ 129,185
2002 120,000 13,355 133,355
2003 125000 6875 131875

$ :i55,QOQ $ 39,iL5 $39~

The County has Issued $36,025,000 in Open Space Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds Series 1994. The
bonds are payable from revenue received by the County from the Imposition of a 25% sales and use tax The
bonds mature annually beginning in 1996 with final payment in 2005. Interest at rates from 4.55% to 5.75%
is payable semi.annually. Debt service to maturity is as follows:

Yearending December 31. Principal Interest Total

2001 $ 3,160,000 $ 991,262 $ 4,151,262
2002 3,335,000 820,622 4,155,622
2003 3,545,000 637,198 4,182,198
2004 3,720,000 440,450 4,160,450
2005 3940.000 226550 4 166 550

$lLb02~0 $ 3,UR,Q82 $2~,~0_82
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTE F . BONDS PAYABLE(CONTINUED)

The County has issued $35,000,000 in Open Space Capital Improvement Fund Bonds, Series 1996. The
bonds are payable from revenue transferred to the Trust Fund from the County's General Fund and other
legally available funds. The bonds mature annually beginning in 1998 with flOal payment in 2010. Interest at
rates from 4.1% to 5.25% IS payable semi.annually. Debt service to matunty IS as follows:

Year ending December 31, Principal Interest Total

2001 $ 2,280,000 $ 1,416,235 $ 3,696,235
2002 2,395,000 1,301,899 3,696,899
2003 2,510,000 1,189,055 3,699,055
2004 2,630,000 1,068,892 3,698,892
2005 2,765,000 932,432 3,697,432
2006 2,925,000 772,953 3,697,953
2007 3,085,000 610,231 3,695,231
2008 3,245,000 449,588 3,694,588
2009 3,420,000 277,920 3,697,920
2010 3,600000 94500 3694500

$ ,--8~855,OOQ $ 8,ltq,LO:i $ 36,;168,705

The Gunbarrel General Improvement District has issued $3,600,000 in General Obligation Bonds Series
1994. The bonds are general obligations of the Gunbarrel District, a component unit, and do not represent a
liability of the County. The bonds are payable from revenue received by the Gunbarrel District for general ad
valorem taxes. The bonds mature annually beginning in 1995 with final payment in 2005. Interest at rates
from 4.1% to 5.6% is payable semi.annually. Debt service to maturity is as follows:

Year ending December 31 Principal Interest Total

2001 $340,000 $101,975 $441,975
2002 360,000 84,295 444,295
2003 375,000 65,215 440,215
2004 395,000 44,965 439,965
2005 415,000 23240 438.240

$ Ul~~,OQo $ ~1_9<2~Q $2.~~69J1
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NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEF . BONDSPAYABLE(CONTINUED)

The County has issued $35,000,000 in Open Space Capital Improvement Fund Bonds, Series 1998. The bonds
are payable from revenues from the County's existing '4% Open Space Sales and Use Tax held in the County's
Open Space Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund Surplus account, from the proceeds of the Bonds, and from
the General Fund if necessary The bonds mature annually beginning in 1999 with fmal payment in 2009.
Interest at rates from 4.5% to 5 25% is payable seml.annually Debt service to maturity IS as follows:

Yearending December 31 Principal Interest ---.I.Q@L
2001 $ 825,000 $ 1,659,840 $ 2,484,840
2002 1,075,000 1,622,715 2,697,715
2003 1,125,000 1,580,790 2,705,7902004 1,300,000 1,535,790 2,835,790
2005 1,415,000 1,477,290 2,892,290
2006 6,360,000 1,412,200 7,772,200
2007 6,800,000 1,094,200 7,894,200
2008 7,250,000 754,200 8,004,200
2009 7700000 336600 8036,600

$n!!~o.QOO $11,4L3~25 $45.323.6~5

The County has issued $38,575,000 in Open Space Capital Improvement Fund Bonds, Series 2000A/2000B.
The bonds are payable from tax revenues received by the County from the .25% sales and use tax imposed in
1994. The bonds mature annually beginning in 2006 with final payment in 2019. Interest with rates from
5.25% to 6.00% is payable semi.annually. Debt service to maturity is as follows:

Yearending December. 31

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Principal

$

700,000
750,000
775,000
775,000

2,760,000
2,905,000
3,060,000
3,230,000
3,405,000
3,600,000
3,805,000
4,030,000
4,265,000
4,515.000

$~5Z.5.QOO

46

Interest

$ 2,200,025
2,200,025
2,200,025
2,200,025
2,200,025
2,200,025
2,161,525
2,120,275
2,077,650
2,035,025
1,890,125
1,734,708
1,567,938
1,388,673
1,196,290
989,290
768,600
526,800
270900

Tota_l_

$ 2,200,025
2,200,025
2,200,025
2,200,025
2,200,025
2,900,025
2,911,525
2,895,275
2,852,650
4,795,025
4,795,125
4,794,708
4,797,938
4,793,673
4,796,290
4,794,290
4,798,600
4,791,800
4,785900

$LO 5Q2.948



Boulder County, Colorado

NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31,2000

NOTEG . INTERFUNDRECEIVABLESAND PAYABLES

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances consist of the following at December 31, 2000:

General Fund

Special RevenueFunds
Road and bridge
Recycling capital improvement
Emergency rescue services
Grants
Retirement
Conservation trust

Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects Fund
Capital Improvement Trust Fund
Gunbarrel GID
Open space Capital Improvement Fund, Series 1994

Internal Service Funds
Risk management

Agency Fund

Total

NOTEH . FUNDBALANCES. RESERVED

Interfund
receivables

$ 603,798

981,633
72,149
159,105
140,897

987
7,078

10,502
331

2,489
476,365

29,027

Interfund
payables

$ 1,516,081

25
38,399

27
44,038

31

118,710

297,665

5,538

463847

$~A84 361

In November 1992, the voters of Colorado approved an amendment to Article X, Section 20 of the State
Constitution. A part of the amendment requires each governmental entity to establish an "Emergency
Reserve" equal to three percent of fiscal year expenditures. In December 1992, the Boulder County Board of
Commissioners passed a resolution which designated the fund balance in the Contingency Fund as the
County's Emergency Reserve. At December 31,2000, the balance in the Emergency Reservewas $2,706,085
for the primary government and $36,456 for the component units. Additional amounts will be added as
required.

A Reserve for Escrow Feeswas created in both the General and Road and Bridge Funds. The escrow fees are
development permit fees which have been accumulating over a period of time and which were recorded as
revenue for the first time in 1992. The revenue is reflected in each of the applicable funds under the category
licenses and permits. The fees will be reserved until such time as they are utilized for the purpose for which
they are collected.

NOTEI . CONDUIT DEBT

The Colorado County and Municipality Development RevenueBond Act, Article 3, Title 29 of Colorado Revised
Statutes, 1973, authorizes municipalities to finance one or more projects to promote industry, trade or other
economic activity to further the economic health of the County. The Act further authorizes the County to
enter into financial agreements with others to provide revenue to pay the bonds authorized and issued and to
secure the payment of such bonds.

Revenue bond financing, as authorized by this Act, does not constitute the pledging of credit for a private
corporation and does not subject the County to the debt, contract or liability of a private corporation.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reflected in the records or financial statements of the County.
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NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31,2000

NOTEI . CONDUITDEBT(Continued)

As of December 31, 1995, there were six series of Industrial RevenueBonds outstanding and five series Of
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds The aggregate principal amount payable for the six series of
Industrial Revenue Bonds and the five series of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds issued prior to
January 1996 could not be determined; however, their onginal issue amounts totaled $48,607,731 and
$66,225,000, respectively. The aggregate principal amount payable for the IRB series issued after January 1,
1996 is $75,725,000. The aggregate principal amount payable for mortgage Revenue Bonds series issued
after January 1,1996, IS $27,209,000

NOTEJ . PENSIONPLAN

Effective January 1, 1985, the County withdrew from the Colorado County Officials and Employees Retirement
Association (CCOERA)and formed the Boulder County Retirement Savings Plan (BCRSP) (the Plan). Under
this Plan, which was established by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners, the County provides
retirement benefits for all of its full.time employees through a defined contribution plan. In a defined
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the Plan plus investment earnings
Employees are eligible to participate as of the first of the month after having completed one year of service
without a break in service. Under this Plan, the County contributes 6% of a participating employee's
compensation to the trust. Each participant may make "pre.tax" contributions up to 19% of annual
compensation not to exceed $10,500, plus "after.tax" contributions in accordance with the provisions of the
Plan. The County's contribution for each employee and interest allocated to the employee's account are fully
vested after six years of service. Employees are fully vested in their own contributions and allocated earnings
immediately. All employees previously enrolled under the CCOERAplan became 100% vested and will receive
any accumulations due them from that plan upon their termination as County employees. County
contributions for, and interest forfeited by, employees who leave employment before six years of service are
used to reduce the County's current.period contribution requirement.

In 1993, the Plan changed its method of accounting for benefits payable to comply with the 1993 AICPAAudit
and Accounting Guide, Audits 01 Employee Benefit Plans. The new guidance requires that benefits payable tc.
persons who havewithdrawn from participation in a defined contribution plan be disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements rather than be recorded as a liability of the Plan. As of December 31,2000, net assets
available for benefrts included benefits of $11,405,849 due to participants who have withdrawn from
participation in the Plan.

The fund balance in the Pension Trust Fund is reserved for future retirement benefits. The County's payroll
for the year ended December 31,2000, for all employees was $56,761,257. Payroll for employees covered by
BCRSP was $55,640,599. The County's contribution, net of forfeitures, was $3,032,747 and covered
employees' voluntary contributions were $3,793,888.

NOTEK . RISKMANAGEMENT

The County is self.insured for risks associated With workers' compensation and property/casualty claims and
therefore, is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets.
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disaster.

The County assumes the risk for the first $300,000 for each workers' compensation occurrence, and $100,000
for each property OCCurrenceand $150,000 for each casualty occurrence. Excess liability insurance is
purchased to protect the County for claims in excess of the above amounts. Under the Governmental
Immunity Act, recovery under claims is generally limited to $150,000 per person and $600,000 total per
OCCurrence.Certain claims for damages, generally constitutional or statutory violations, are not covered under
the Act.

The County also maintains a self funded health and dental plan in which it assumes the risk for the first
$125,000 per claim. Excessinsurance is purchased to protect the County for claims over that amount.
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NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEK. RISKMANAGEMENT(Continued)

The County has Implemented Statement No. 10 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)and
established a Risk Management Fund (an Internal Service Fund) to account for and finance all uninsured risks
of loss. Residual equity transfers in the amount of $1,474.335 and $439.185 were made in 1995 from the
General Fund and the Self. insurance Expendable Trust Fund, respectively, to the newly created Risk
Management Fund. With the Implementation of GASB No 10. liabilities of the Risk Management Fund are
reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. lIabilit,es include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). Claims
liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claims settlement trends including
frequency and amount of pay.outs, and other economic and soc,al factors.

Changes in the balances of claims I,ab,l,ties for each of the past two years are as follows:

Unpaid claims, beginning of year
Incurred claims (including IBNRs)
Claim payments

Unpaid claims, end of year

2000

$ 2,880,143
8.190,164
<7,913,155)

$~l?L!~~

1999

$ 2,269,740
8,648,182
(8,037,779)

$ 2,880.1~3

There has been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. There have been no
settlements exceeding insurance coverage during the last three years.

NOTEL. COMMITMENTSANDCONTINGENTLIABILITIES

1. Risk Management

All funds of the County participate in the program and make payments to the Risk Management Fund based
on estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to establish a reserve for
catastrophe losses. The claims liabilities reported in the Risk Management Fund at December 31,2000, are
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated.

2. Litigation

Boulder County is a defendant in several lawsuits, including various claims related to activities or employees
of the County. The County believes that final settlement of these matters not covered by insurance will not
have a material effect on its financial condition.

3. Purchase Options

The County leases areas of open space land, separated into parcels upon which purchase options may be
exercised annually. The continuance of each lease and option is contingent upon the annual lease payment
and exercise of each available option in succession. Further details of each lease are as follows:
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NOTEK ' COMMITMENTSANDCONTINGENTLIABILITIES (Continued)

3. Purchase Options (Continued)

Caribou Western
Harless Peck AlmqUIst Ranch MobileProperty Prooerty Property Property Property

Total acreage 1526] 4529 2191 2640 354 19Number of parcels 4 2 11 5 7Total options $ 861.920 $611.856 $ 891.793 $ 15.028.267 variableOptIOns exercised through
December31, 2000 861.920 224246 355290 2 955 592 1427899

Remaining
options $~~_. $ 38l.610 $536,5cO~ $ t2.Pl2.675 subject to

change

Total acreage
Number of parcels
Total options
OptIons exercised
through
December31. 2000

Remarning
optIons

Total acreage
Number of parcels
Total options
Options exercised through
December31,2000

Remaining
options

Montgomery
Macy Farm Faul Tveten Golden

Property Property Property Property Property

175 12892 241.57 624 147
6 5 10 6 I$ 2.002.000 $ 1.278.162 $ 1.656.G93 $ 1.739.192 $ 1.000.000

369600 1 016479 807162 945456 125100

$1.&12 400 $~gl~~ $ 8!lB.931 $ Z93,l36 $llZ!l~.QQ

Swanson
Yoakum Blllrngs Marvin
Property Property Property

7072 32632 3442
4 8 2

$ 1.042.821 $ 1.156.019 $ 1.372.788

1 042821 171119 961.000

$ $_.951900 $,iU.~

For properties which have not yet been purchased, the County pays an annual rental per acre plus
assessed property taxes.

4. Construction Contracts

The County has construction commitments outstanding of approximately $2,585,027 with various
contractors at December 31, 2000.

5. Grants

Under terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned
as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants.. Such audits could lead to
reimbursement to the grantor agencies. County management believes dISallowances, If any, would be
immaterial.
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NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS(CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000

NOTEM - REVENUEAND EXPENDITURELIMITATIONS

The 1992 amendment to Article X, Section 20 of the State Constitution limits the revenue raising and
spending abilities of the State and local governments, effective December 31,1992. It prohibits any increase
in the mill levy without a vote of the citizens, requires any revenue collected in excess of the fiscal year
spending limit to be refunded in the following year, and requires the establishment of an "Emergency
Reserve"equal to three percent of fiscal year expenditures.

In 1997, the County voters approved two ballot issues related to the amendment. The first requested that
$461,306 in grants from the State, other governments and non.profit organizations received and expended in
1996 be exempt from the amendment's revenue and spending limitations The second requested that grants
from the State, other governments and non-profit organizations received and expended in 1997 and future
years be exempt from the amendment's revenue and spending limitations.

In 2000, the County voters approved additional exemptions of certain kinds of revenues. The exempted
revenues include interest earnings on fund balances, fees paid for contracted Sheriff's services, fees paid
pursuant to contracts for public services and public capital facilities, payment of fines, and employee
contributions to the County health and dental benefit plans. The change was effective in 2000 and each
subsequent year without further voter approval.

Based upon its interpretation of the Amendment, the County believes it has not exceeded Its revenue and
spending limits for 2000. In any year when the limits are exceeded, the excesswill be handled in accordance
with the provisions of the Amendment.

NOTEN . SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

On March 20, 2001, the County issued $50,000,000 in Open Space Capital Improvement Trust Fund bonds,
Series 2001. The bonds are payable from revenue generated by the pledged .10% sales and use tax
dedicated to open space, from the open space surplus account, and from the general fund ,f necessary. The
bonds mature annually beginning in 2004 with final payment in 2019. Interest rates are from 4.25% to
5.00% and payments are made semi.annually.
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Boulder County, Colorado

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTiNUED)

Decem ber 31, 2000

NOTE O. SCHEDULEOF EBT AUTHORIZATIONS, WARRANT EXPENDITURES AND TOTAL EXPENDITURES

J. A T B I C D E
Proara~C~ County Share I Exoenditures Countv EBT Tatall EBT af -.l by County Authorizations

~_~~!borizati2.ns Authorizations Warrant olus Expenditures EXDenditures
by County (Col B + Col C)

$2,13;=;;=1= $23,729

Warrant
(Col A + Col C)

Old Aoe Pension $2,132,743 $23729
Low - Income "~=~ 390,809
Energy Assistance
Prooram
Temporary

~- 1,631,549- ----655,439 1,631,549 655,439
Assistance for
Needv Families
Regular $12,820,516 12,820,516 12,820,516
Administration
CWEST/Child 2,683,750 887,243 2,683,750 887,243
Welfare
Core Services 1,409,591 1,409,591 1,409,591
Aid to the Needy 611,466 42,124 611,466 42,124
Disabled
IV-D 1,049,290 1,049,290 1,049,290
Administration
CHATS/Child Care 2,615,353 453001 2,615353 453,001
Medicaid 4,978 4,978
Transoortation
General Assistance 61,089 61089 61,089
Miscellaneous 119,377 119,377 119377

Subtotal 10,065671 2061,536 15,464841 25,530512 17,526,377
Food Assistance 3,680689 3,680689

Grand Total 13746,359 2061,536 15,464,841 29211,200 17,526377

A. Welfare payments authorized by the Boulder County Dept of Social Services. These county authorizations are
paid by the Colorado Department of HumanServices by QUEST debit card or by electronic funds transfer (EBT)

B. County share of EBT authorizations. These amounts are settled monthly by a reduction of State cash advances
to the county.

C. Expenditures made my county warrants or other county payment methods.

D. This represents the total cost of the welfare programs that are administered by Boulder County.

E. This total matches the expenditures on the Social Services Fund - State of Revenues Expenditures and Changes
in the Fund Balance.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. As the County's major operating
fund, the General Fund accounts for ordinary operations such as County administration, public protection
and safety, parks and open space, planning and zoning, and other community servicesand activities.
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Boulder County, Colorado

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Restricted cash
Property taxes receivable
Interest receivable
County goods and services receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures
Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

2000

$22,136,399
4,472,174
60,620,341

541,007
2,997,729
603,798
10,974
53,998

$91,436,420

1999

$16,093,825
3,686,066
58,738,622

637,505
1,777,896
1,214,033

2,056
61,584

$82,211,587

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities
Escrows payable
Other Liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balance
Reserved for prepaid expenditures and inventory
Reserved for escrow fees
Unreserved
Designated for open space land maintenance
Undesignated

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance
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$2,535,831 $1,051,065
1,516,081 910,751

60,622,341 58,738,622
3,646,119 3,644,337
3,057,600 2,449,060
286,014 319,895

71,663,986 67,113,730

64,972 63,640
495,722 1,237,006

253,597 253,597
18,958,143 13,543,614

19,772,434 15,097,857

$91,436,420 $82,211,587



Boulder County, Colorado

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,'2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance.
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenue

Taxes
Property $57,917,024 $58,417,706 $500,682 $54,441,242
SpecifIc ownership 3,245,386 3,548,472 303,086 3,086,657

Total 61,162,410 61,966,178 803,768 57,527,899

licenses and permits
BU5in~ss 4,725 5,369 644 5,957
Non-business 528,650 785,675 257,225 701,318

Total 533,375 791,244 257,869 707,275

Interest on investments 2,000,000 3,287,738 1,287,738 2,613,263
Intergovernmental

Federal grants 73,249 74,249 1,000 84,688
Federal shared revenue 173,152 187,109 13,957 334,511
Slate grants 31,200 22,731 (8,469) 34,427
State shared revenue 216,800 313,157 96,357 287,153
Other governmental units 2,611,372 3,265,086 653,714 1,663,519

Total 3,105,773 3,862,332 756,559 2,404,298

Charges for services
Molor vehicle fees - clerk 2,408,000 2,270,370 (137,630) 2,148,278
Recording fees - clerk 2,651,200 1,976,286 (674,914) 2,163,650
Treasurer fees 1,429,994 1,244,070 (185,924) 1,473,984
Other fees 1,372,000 1,730,455 358,455 1,735,599
T elecomrnunications 569,787 626,974 57,187 576,384
Parks charges 120,000 187,685 67,685 155,345
Miscellaneous 754,079 835,548 81,469 660,472
Sheriff charges 1,040,779 1,105,587 64,808 853,387

Total 10,345,839 9,976,975 (368,864) 9,767,099

Fines and forfeitures 459,942 337,849 (122,093) 388,252
Other revenue

Open Space rental 288,485 436,535 148,050 333,068
Building rental 614,722 643,097 28,375 635,788
Sale of fixed assets 927,337 1,887,459 960,122 2,741,374
Miscellaneous 335,648 244,458 (91,190) 393,903

Total 2,166,192 3,211,549 1,045,357 4,104,133

Total revenue 79,773,531 83,433,8651 3,660,334 77,512,219
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Boulder County, Colorado

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Expenditures
General government
Administrative services
Personal services $5,759,297 $5,530,791 $228,506 $5,107,566
Operating 2.598,183 2,597,104 1,079 2,366,024

Assessor
Personal services 1,931,400 1,888,496 42,964 1,725,354
Operating 247,220 244,548 2,672 291,812

Building utilities
Operating 955,659 888,904 66,755 806,319

County attorney
Personal services 1,583,834 1,578,638 5,196 1,509,467
Operating 243,351 232,946 10,405 160,444

County commissioners
Personal services 738,199 736,220 1,979 703,590
Operating 133,891 114,362 19,529 123,413

County surveyor
Operating 2,000 1,268 732 1,486

Clerk and Recorder
Personal services 2,719,031 2,719,031 2,328,791
Operating 897,721 894,938 2,783 358,295

General administration
Operating 16,593,972 14,214,887 2,379,085 24,295,160

Land use
Personal services 1,731,656 1,712,422 19,234 1,643,352
Operating 646,547 517,119 129,428 567,634

Telecommunications
Personal services 263,118 261,665 1,453 207,952
Operating 643,724 642,058 1,666 623,372

Treasurer
Personal services 539,391 538,359 1,032 541,091
Operating 149,528 120,758 28,770 123,588
District Attorney
Personal services 2,867,540 2,865,332 2,214 2,809,672
Operating 213,797 206,502 7,295 221,498

Total 41,459,125 38,506,348 2,952,777 46,515,880

Conservation
Parks and open space
Personal services 2,718,374 2,707,904 10,470 2,337,534
Operating 4,338,873 4,240,053 98,820 3,247,784

Coal Creek/Rock Creek
Operating 335,504 69,732 265,772 803

Total 7,392,751 7,017,689 375,062 5,586,121

Continued
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Boulder County, Colorado

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Expenditures (Continued)

Urban Redevelopment/Housing
Housing management
Personal services $1,208,540 $1,181,303 $27,237 $911,470
Operating 35,972 23,066 12,906 22,726

Total 1,244,512 1,204,369 40,143 934,196

Public Safety
Community Services
Personal services 3,122,525 3,022,469 100,056 2,807,896
Operating 1,222,550 1,147,083 75,467 645,077

County coroner
Personal services 245,635 243,520 2,115 233,236
Operating 214,352 203,050 11,302 171,795

Sheriff
Personal services 12,885,587 12,823,400 62,187 11,946,129
Operating 2,833,751 2,795,544 38,207 2,699,088

Sheriff - Communication Center
Personal Services 1,413,540 1,398,254 15,286
Operating 302,336 163,258 139,078 607,305

Total 22,240,276 21,796,578 443,698 19,110,526

Economic development
Nonprofit payments
Operating 1,952,679 1,952,679 1,874,198

Highways and streets
Transportation
Personal services 822,844 694,348 128,496 705,107
Operating 161,218 70,732 90,486 120,685

Tolal 984,062 765,080 218,982 825,792

Total expenditures 75,273,405 71,242,743 4,030,662 74,846,713

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 4,500,126 12,191,122 7,690,996 2,665,506

Other financing (uses)
Operating transfers in 931,144
Operating transfers out (3,831,170) (3,961,996) (130,826) (5,800,588)
Operating transfers out to component unit (3,554,549) (3,554,549) (3,292,381 )

Total other financing (uses) (7,385,719) (7,516,545) (130,826) (8,161,825)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and

4,674,577 $7,560,170 (5,496,319)other financing users ($2,885,593)

Fund balance, beginning of year 15,097,857 20,594,176

Fund balance, end of year $19,772,434 $10,097,857
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than major capital projects or expendable trusts) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Road and Bridge Fund - Colorado counties are required by state law to maintain a
Road and Bridge Fund. This fund reflects costs related to County road and bridge
construction and maintenance except for engineering costs that are recorded in the
General Fund.

Social Services Fund - Colorado counties are required by state law to maintain a
Social Services Fund. This fund accounts for public aid programs administered by
the County.

Recycling Capital Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for proceeds received
for the purpose of administering the resource recovery and recycling program,
mountain solid waste collection, licensing of trash haulers, and monitoring
of the landfill.

Contingency Fund - Colorado counties are required by state law to maintain
a Contingency Fund. This fund accounts for monies the County would use
to cover contingencies or emergencies, as defined in State statutes.

Developmental Disabilities Fund - This fund is used to account for monies
used for the specific purpose of providing services to people with
developmental disabilities.

Emergency Rescue Services Fund - This fund is used to account for
Boulder County search and rescue and other emergency services.

Grants Fund - This fund is used to account for all revenue and expenditures
of programs funded by federal, state and/or local grant awards.

Retirement Fund - This fund accounts for County contributions to the
Boulder County Retirement Trust (a Pension Trust Fund).

Conservation Trust Fund - This fund accounts for revenue received from
the state lottery proceeds to be used for the acquisition, development
and maintenance of parks and trail systems within the County.
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Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31,1999)

Recycling
Road Social Capital

and Bridge Services Improvement Contingency

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments $2,665,571 52,598,216 $13,395,833 $2,706,085
Restricted cash 17,788
Property taxes receivable 1,967,555 5,206,219
Due from other governmental units 1,545,626
Interest receivable 44,027 202,725
County goods and services receivable 1,330,746 719,231
Due from other funds 981,633 72,149
Prepaid expenditures 39,300
Inventory 33,248

Total assets $7,079,868 $9,350,061 $14,389,938, $2,706,085 .

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable $346,294 $1,952,265 $2,406,776
Due to other funds 25 38,399
Deferred revenue 2,682,912 5,206,219
Due to other governmental units 67,807
Accrued liabilities 381,787 361,033
Other Liabilities 731 15,726

Total liabilities 3,411,749 7,603,050 2,445,175

Fund balance
Reserved for emergencies $2,706,085
Reserved for inventory and prepaid
expenditures 72,548

Reserved for escrow fees 835,734
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent year's
expenditures 524,846

Undesi9naled 2,234,991 1,747,011 11.944,763

Total fund balance 3,668,119 1,747,011 11,944,763 2,706,085

Total liabilities and fund balance $7,079,868 $9,350,061 $14,389,938 $2,706,085
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Emergency
Developmental Rescue Conservation Totals
Disabilities Services Grants Retirement Trust 2000 1999

$18,501 / $3,766,808 $1,175,942 $1,005,026 $2,151,584 $29,483,566 $29,691,816
17,788

806,675 1,912,449 9,892,898 7,802,983
120,866 1,666,492 896,493

54,886 $32,541 334,179 297,034
358,972 760,935 259,770 3,429,654 3,752,243
159,105 140,897 987 7,078 1,361,849 937,057

18,561 57,861 7,686
33,248 33,920

$825,176 $4,339,771 $2,217,201 $3,178,232 - $2,191,203 $46,277,535 $43,419,232

$157 $305,910 ' $564,036 $5,575,438 $2,461,313
27 44,038 31 82,520 31,982

$806,676 1,600,173 1,912,511 12,208,491 10,730,010
63,577 131,384 476,406
203,353 946,173 1,068,846

150 16,607 16,813

806,676 184 2,217,201- 2,476,578 18,960,613 14,785,370

2,706,085 2,706,085

72,548 33,920
835,734 750,450

13,772 1,878,998 254,049 2,671,665 10,893,582
4,728 2,460,589 447,605 2,191,203 21,030,890 14,249,825

18,500 4,339,587 701,654 2,191,203 27,316,922 28,633,862

$825,176 $4,339,771 $2,217,201 $3,178,232 $2,191,203 $46,277,535 $43,419,232
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Boulder County. Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31,1999)

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Interest on investments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total revenue

Recycling
Road Social Capital

and Bridge Services Improvement Contingency

$5,016,932 $2,540,873 $4,344,443 $
57,873
322,827 1,014,449

5,157,532 12,613,985
352,144
489,855 254,152

11,397,163,' 15,409,010 5,358,892

Expenditures
General government
Conservation
Public safety
Health and welfare
Economic development
Highways and streets
Intergovernmental

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Operating transfers out to
component unit

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other
financing sources over expenditures and
other financing uses

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

10,103,232
1,057,813
11,161,045

236,118

(126,571 )

(126,571)

109,547

3,558,572

$3,668,119
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17,526,377

17,526,377

(2,117,367)

(2,117,367)

3,864,378

$1,747,011

5,358,892

(7,367,593)

(7,367,593)

(2,008,701 )

13,953,464

$11,944,763

2,706,085

$2,706,085



Emergency
Developmental Rescue Conservation Totals
Disabilities Services Grants Retirement Trust 2000 1999

$841,493 $2,172,244 $2,267,694 $17,183,679 $17,213,867
57,873 49,644

216,640 $193,913 1,747,829 1,200,290
$7,960,109 391,513 26,123,139 26,788,475

352,144 897,135
499,061 4,651,436 5,894,504 6,940,372

841,493 2,388,884 8,459,170 6,919,130 585,426 51,359,168 53,089,783

702,971 6,646,220 7,349,191 6,593,528
79,373 534,132 613,505 2,176,686

10,000 2,593,549 2,603,549 2,719,380
845,000 1,593,386 19,964,763 19,476,013

3,652,493 3,652,493 3,798,478
10,103,232 9,993,248
1,057,813 1,268,952

845,000 10,000 8,621,772 6,646,220 534,132 45,344,546 46,026,285

(3,507) 2,378,884 (162,602) 272,910 51,294 6,014,622 7,063,498

176,289 - 176,289 91,701
(13,687) (140,258) (267,863)

(7,367,593) (2,035,752)

162,602 (7,331,562) (2,211,914)

(3,507)

22,007

$18,500

2,378,884

1,960,703

$4,339,587 $

272,910

428,744

$701,654
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51,294

2,139,909

$2,191,203

(1,316,940)

28,633,862

$27,316,922

4,851,584

23,782,278

$28,633,862



Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Vanance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenue
Taxes
Property $2,692,942 $2,767,375 $74,433 53,205,370
Specific ownership 2,179,972 2,201,175 21,203 2,083,819
Sales 32,000 48,382 16,382 32,320

Total 4,904,914 5,016,932 112,018 5,321,509

Licenses and permits 40,000 57,873 17,873 49,644
Interest on investments 85,000 322,827 237,827 251,070
Intergovernmental 4,855,155 5,157,532 302,377 4,902,094
Charges for services 233,371 352,144 118,773 897,135
Other revenue 307,290 489,855 182,565 23,753

Total revenues 10,425,730 11,397,163 /' 971,433 11,445,205

Expenditures
Highways and streets 11,929,009 10,103,232 1,825,777 9,993,248
Intergovernmental 1,063,357 1,057,813 5,544 1,268,952

Total expenditures 12,992,366 11,161,045 1,831,321 11,262,200

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (2,566,636) 236,118 2,802,754 183,005

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers out (125,245) (126,571) (1,326) (126,727)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses ($2,691,881) 109,547 52,801,428 56,278

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,558,572 3,502,294

Fund balance, end of year $3,668,119 $3,558,572
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Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - SOCIAL SERVICES FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Revenue
Taxes
Property
Specific ownership

Total

Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

2000 1999
Vanance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

$2,306,363 $2,311,986 $5,623 $3,526,817
295,410 228,887 (66,523) 316,512

2,601,773 2,540,873 (60,900) 3,843,329

13,922,082 12,613,985 (1,308,097) 13,576,172
2,134,386 254,152 (1,880,234) 144,499
18,658,241 15,409,010 (3,249,231 ) 17,564,000

Expenditures
Health and welfare
Administration Salaries,
supplies and other

Direct Assistance
Aid to blind
Aid to needy disabled
Core services
Child welfare
Day care payments
General assistance
Old age pensions
Child protection early
intervention
Medicaid transportation
TANF/Coiorado Works

Total

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

15,280,636

780
201,398

1,328,800
877,276
417,203
72,472
22,867

15,000
441,809

3,377,605

18,658,241

$
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13,989,183

42,124
1,409,591
887,243
453,001
61,089
23,729

4,978
655,439

3,537,194

17,526,377

(2,117,367) ($2,117,367)

3,864,378

$1,747,011

427,354

3,437,024

$3,864,378



Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - RECYCLING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenue
Sales tax $4,054,679 $4,344,443 $289,764 $3,519,687
Interest on investments 333,667 1,014,449 680,782 819,344

Total revenues 4,388,346 5,358,892 970,546 4,339,031

Expenditures

Excess of revenue over expenditures 4,388,346 5,358,892 970,546 4,339,031

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers out to
component unit (13,362,406) (7,367,593) 5,994,813 (2,035,752)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses ($8,974,060) (2,008,701 ) $6,965,359 2,303,279

Fund balance, beginning of year 13,953,464 11,650,185

Fund balance, end of year $11,944,763 $13,953,464
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Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999

Revenue
Taxes
Property
Specific ownership

Total revenues

Expenditures
Health and Welfare
Board for Developmental
Disabilities

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budget

$760,416
67,860
828,276

845,000

($16,724)
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Actual

$768,438
73,055
841,493

845,000

(3,507)

22,007

$18,500

Variance -
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

$8,022
5,195
13,217

$13,217

Actual

$805,252
71,891
877,143

858,023

19,120

2,887

$22,007



Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - EMERGENCY RESCUE SERVICES FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Revenue
Sales Tax
Interest on Investments

Total revenues

Expenditures
Construction Projects

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2000

Budget Actual

$1,913,998 $2,172,244
35,000 216,640

1,948,998 2,388,884

3,909,701 10,000

($1,960,703) 2,378,884

1,960,703

$4,339,587

1999
Variance -
Favorable

(Unfavorable) Actual

$258,246 $1,906,099
181,640 54,604
439,886 $1,960,703

3,899,701

$4,339,587 $1,960,703

$1,960,703
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Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Revenue
Intergovernmental
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenditures
General government grants
District attorney
Juvenile Victim Witness
County Court Victim Witness
Volunteer Coordinator (VALE)
Victim Compensation Coordinator (court)
Victim Compensation (federal)
D.A. Juvenile Diversion
Land use
Lyons Recycling Compactor
Nederland Recycling Compactor
Waste Tire Program

Architects
Courthouse Fountain remodel

Total general government

Public safety grants
Community corrections
Senate Bill IV
Community Corrections Juvenile Diversion
Senate Bill 94
Juvenile Accountability
Sheriffs Office Grants:
Adult Basic Education
COPS Universal Hiring
COPS Crime Stoppers
LEAF
Victim Assistance
AFIS Upgrade
Emergency Medical Services
Victims of Crime Act
Drug Task Force
State Crime Alien Assistance
Bulletproof Vest Partnership
Silent Witness Program
Colorado Regional Community Policing
High Intensity Drug Trafficing Agency
Learning Enhancement Software
Search and Rescue
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$7,960,109
499,061

8,459,170

15,898
86,917
47,254
44,138
287,331
81,817

10,664
9,000

119,952

702,971

1,295,069
26,500
685,390
54,452

50,098
33,844

16,153
43,690
234,855

6,931

2,000
34,733
8,894

19

$7,802,288
775,271

8,577,559

14,232
76,789
43,946
39,727
226,500
66,511

3,404
471,109

1,283,111
35,300

697,450
18,425

7,917
7,627
3,958
976

30,764
950

15,092
18,906

273,165
293,743
7,064
2,000

15,260
Continued



Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety grants (continued)
Sheriff (continued)
Law Enforcement Master Index System
Intensive Treatment and Supervision
Mobile Data Servers

Total public safety

Heailh and welfare
Community services
Area Agency on Aging
Weatherization
Weatherization Youth Energy Alternatives
Emergency Sheiler
Project HOPE
Community Food Share Expansion
Drug Free Communities Support Program
Project Assets
Trabanjando Unidos - Working Together

Totai health and welfare

Conservation grants
Parks
Historic Sites Survey
Lohr Macintosh Barn
Caribou Ranch Resource Evaluation
Hall Ranch House
Walker Ranch Wheat Barn
Walker Ranch Force and Led Accounts

Total conservation
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$
61,198
39,723

2,593,549

454,551
1,017,220

27,653
3,445
24,033
65,553

931
1,593,386

915

12,386
66,072
79,373

$1,172

6,500
2,719,380

349,851
971,185
3,447
2,700
31,329
9,000

83,845
29,987

1,481,344

18,753
3,773
19,250
6,250
9,787

57,813

Continued



Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999

Expenditures (continued)
Economic deveiopment grants
Community services
Head Start
Community Action Program
Workforce Boulder County

Total economic development

Total expenditures

(Deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

Other financing sources
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Excess of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

$1,091,099 $988,400
268,491 225,350

2,292,903 2,584,728
3,652,493 3,798,478

8,621,772 8,528,124

(162,602) 49,435

176,289 91,701
(13,687) (141,136)

Fund balance, end of year
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Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE. RETIREMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE. BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999

Budget Actual

Variance.
Favorable

(Unfavorable) Actual

Revenue
Taxes
Property
Specific ownership

Total

Other revenue
Employee contributions
Employer contributions.
other agencies
Total

Total revenue

Expenditures
General government
Retirement contributions to
Boulder County Retirement
Savings Trust

401 (k) administration

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$2,055,955 $2,075,226 $19,271 $1,600,680
187,921 192,468 4,547 145,420

2,243,876 2,267,694 23,818 1,746,100

3,320,980 3,409,944 88,964 3,131,866

1,147,182 1,241,492 94,310 1,107,167
4,468,162 4,651,436 183,274 4,239,033

6,712,038 6,919,130 207,092 5,985,133

6,641,960 6,507,430 134,530 6,038,024
57,100 138,790 (81,690) 84,236

6,699,060 6,646,220 52,840 6,122,260

$12,978 272,910 $259,932 (137,127)

428,744 565,871

$701,654 $428,744
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Boulder County, Colorado

SPECIAL REVENUE - CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Revenue
Interest on investments
Intergovernmental
Sale of Fixed Assets

2000
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$30,000 $193,913 $163,913
400,000 391,513 (8,487)

1999

Actual

$75,272
363,422

1,902,315

Total revenue

Expenditures
Conservation

Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

430,000

534,573

($104,573)

73

585,426

534,132

$51,294

2,139,909

$2,191,203

155,426

441

$155,867

2,341,009

2,118,873

222,136

1,917,773

$2,139,909
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Project Funds account for financial resources collected and used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources
to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, projects
and equipment.

Capital Improvement Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for financial
resources to be used for street. road and drainage improvements.

Gunbarrel General Improvement District Fund - This fund is used to account
for activities of the Gunbarrel General Improvement District. a subdivision of
the State of Colorado created for the purpose of constructing certain public
improvements to be located within the district.

Open Space Capital Improvement Fund, Bond Series 1994 - This fund is
used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition of
interests in open space real property and access thereto. water rights
and improvement upon open space real property.

Open Space Capital Improvement Trust Fund, Bond Series 1996 - This
fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition of interests in open space real property and access thereto.
water rights and improvement upon open space real property.
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Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

Open Space Open Space
CapItal Gunbarrel Capital Capital

Improvement General Improvement Improvement
Capital Trust Fund Improvement Fund,Bond Fund, Bond Totals
Projects (Roads) District Series 1994 Series 1996 2000 1999

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash
and investments $4,720,920 $11,786 $768,578 $11,603,352 $ $17,104,636 $11,146,491

Restricted cash 90,000 90,000 90,000
Property taxes receivable 7,539,668 7,539,668 6,209,660
Interest receivable 1,520 11,443 259,221 272,184 130,487
County goods and
services receivable 285,052 3,321 1,877,146 2,165,519 2,009,712
Due from other funds 10,502 331 2,489 476,365 489,687 80,002
Prepaid expenditures 106,347

Tolal assets $12,556,142 $103,637 $785,831 $14,216,084 $ $27,661,694 $19,772,899

LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable $398,942 $ $ $10,495 $ $409,437 $404,049
Due to other funds 118,710 297,665 416,375 805,902
Deferred revenue 7,539,668 403,000 7,942,668 6,693,460
Accrued liabilities 159,752 159,752 132,466
Other Liabilities 292 739 1,031 805,513

Total liabilities 8,217,364 711,899 8,929,263 8,841,390

Fund balance
Reserved for prepaid
expenditures 106,347
Reserved for debt service 90,000 90,000 90,000
Unreserved
Designated for
subsequent year's
expenditures 1,497,512 1,497,512 1,187,892
Undesignated 2,841,266 13,637 785,831 13,504,185 17,144,919 9,547,270

Total fund balance 4,338,778 103,637 785,831 13,504,185 18,732,431 10,931,509

Total liabilities and
fund balance $12,556,142 $103,637 $785,831 $14,216,084 $ $27,661,694 $19,772,899
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Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31,1999)

Open Space Open Space
Capital Gunbarrel Capital Capital

Improvement General Improvement Improvement
Capital Trust Fund Improvement Fund. Bond Fund, Bond Totals
Projects (Roads) District Series 1994 Series 1996 2000 1999

Revenues
Taxes
Property $6.179.275 $ $411,349 $ $ $6.590.624 $5.369,537
Sales 10,861,103 10,861,103 8,797,779
Specific ownership 574.835 38,564 613,399 469,606

Total taxes 6.754,110 449,913 10,861,103 18,OG5,126 14,636,922

Interest on investments 7.189 66,654 2.193,647 2,267,490 961,289
Intergovernmental 834 614,109 614,943 269.337
Sale of fixed assets 181.299 181,299 3,181,645
Miscellaneous revenue 558,247 3,605 561,852 230,585

Total revenue 7,313,191, 7,189 516,567 13,853,763 21,690,710 19,279,778

Expenditures
General government 7,936,289 7,936,289 5.892,411
Conservation 32.648,900 32,648,900 25,313,371
Debt service
Principal 105,000 325.000 3,055,000 2,875,000 6,360.000 6,230,000
Interest and fiscal charges 24,945 118.950 3,078,035 3,209,187 6,431.117 4,972,153

Total debt service 129,945 443,950 6,133,035 6,084,187 12,791.117 11.202.153

Total expenditures 7.936.289 129.945 443,950 ' 38,761,935 6.084,187 53,376.306 42.407,935

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (623,098) (122,756) 72,617 (24,928,172) (6,084,187) (31,685,596) (23,128,157)

Other financing sources (uses)
Bond proceeds 35,575,000 35.575,000
Proceeds of refunding bonds 3.000.000 3,000,000
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (3,000,000) (3,000,000)
Operating transfers in 87,000 126,571 6,084,206 ••.•• 6,297,777 7,992.104
Operating transfers out (2,386,259) (2,386,259) (2,946.498)

Total other financing
sources (uses) 87,000 126,571 33.188,741 6,084,206 39,486.518 5,045.606

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and other financing sources
(uses) over expenditures (536,098) 3,815 72,617 8,260,569 19 7,800,922 (18,082,551)

Fund balances, beginning of year 4,874,676 •• 99,622 713,214 5,243,616 (19) 10,931.509 29.014,060

Fund balances, end of year $4,338,778 $103,637 $785,831 $13,504,185 $18,732,431 $10,931,509
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Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes

Total taxes

Intergovernmental
Other revenue
Building rentals
Sale of fixed assets
Miscellaneous

Total other revenue

Total revenue

Budget

$6,132,030
522,584

6,654,614

293,423

293,423

6,948,037

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

$6,179,275 $47,245 $4,957,273
574,835 52,251 433,444

6,754,110 99,496 5,390,717

834 834 3,892

548,390 254,967 214,306
2,999,359

9,857 9,857 13,521
558,247 264,824 3,227,186

7,313,191 365,154 8,621,795

Expenditures
General government
Salaries and fringe benefits
Ongoing operations
Mechanical projects
Construction projects

Total expenditures

2,717,453 1,936,910 780,543 1,445,283
125,742 116,526 9,216 100,595

1,482,943 817,629 665,314 739,497
6,231,594 5,065,224 1,166,370 3,607,036

10,557,732 7,936,289 2,621,443 5,892,411

Continued
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Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

(CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures ($3,609,695) ($623,098) $2,986,597 $2,729,384

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in 87,000 87,000 2,010,392
Operating transfers out (790,008)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other
financing sources (uses) over
expenditures and other financing uses ($3,609,695) (536,098) $3,073,597 3,949,768

Fund balances, beginning of year 4,874,876 925,108

Fund balances, end of year $4,338,778 $4,874,876
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Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTITRUST FUND (ROADS)

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative lotals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
Interest on investments $4,700 $7,189 $2,489 $6,271

Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 105,000 105,000 100,000
Interest and fiscal charges 24,945 24,945 29,945

Total expenditures 129,945 129,945 129,945

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (125,245) (122,756) 2,489 (123,674)

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in 125,245 126,571 126,727

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other
financing sources (uses) over
expenditures $ 3,815 $2,489 3,053

Fund balances, beginning of year 99,822 96,769

Fund balances, end of year $103,637 $99,822
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Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
GUNBARREL GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31,1999)

Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes

Total taxes

Interest on investments
Sale of fixed assets

Total revenue

Expenditures
Conservation
Open space purchases
Miscellaneous
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

$408,866 $411,349 $2,483 $412,264
35,000 38,564 3,564 36,162
443,866 449,913 6,047 448,426

31,500 66,654 35,154 51,980
3,000

475,366 516,567 41,201 503,406

81



Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
OPEN SPACE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND, BOND SERIES 1994

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE. BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
Sales taxes $11,656,658 $10,861,103 ($795,555) $8,797,779
Interest on investments 250,000 2,193,647 1,943,647 637,070
Intergovernmental 614,109 614,109 265,445
Other revenue
Sale of fixed assets 181,299 181,299 124,262
Miscellaneous 3,605 3,605 2,758

Total other revenue 184,904 184,904 127,020

Total revenue 11,906,658 13,853,763 1,947,105 9,827,314

Expenditures
Conservation
Salaries and fringe benefits 8,000 (8,000)
Engineering fees 508,964 521,999 (13,035) 100,329
Open space purchases 42,704,654 31,581,774 11,122,880 6,043,356
Miscellaneous 537,127 (537,127)
Debt service
Principal 3,455,000 3,055,000 400,000 3,290,000
Interest and fiscal charges 3,238,849 3,078,035 160,814 1,488,023

Total debt service 6,693,849 6,133,035 560,814 4,778,023

Total expenditures 49,907,467 38,781,935 11,125,532 10,921,708

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (38,000,809) (24,928,172) 13,072,637 (1,094,394)

Other financing sources (uses)
Bond Proceeds 35,418,543 35,575,000 156,457
Proceeds of refunding bonds 3,000,000 3,000,000
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (3,000,000) (3,000,000)
Operating transfers out (2,387,090) (2,386,259) 831 (2,156,490)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other
financing sources (uses) over

($4,969,356) 8,260,569 $13,229,925 (3,250,884)expenditures

Fund balances, beginning of year 5,243,616 8,494,500

Fund balances, end of year $13,504,185 $5,243,616
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Boulder County, Colorado

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
OPEN SPACE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND, BOND SERIES 1996

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues
Interest on investments $ $ $ $265,968
Sale of fixed assets 55,024

Total other revenue 55,024

Total revenue 320,992

Expenditures
Conservation
Engineering fees 76,517
Open space purchases 18,973,085
Miscellaneous 120,060
Debt service
Principal 2,875,000 2,875,000 2,535,000
Interest and fiscal charges 3,210,438 3,209,187 1,251 3,319,985

Total debt service 6,085,438 6,084,187 1,251 5,854,985

Total expenditures 6,085,438 6,084,187 1,251 25,024,647

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (6,085,438) (6,084,187) 1,251 (24,703,655)

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in 6,085,438 6,084,206 (1,232) 5,854,985

Total other financing sources 6,085,438 6,084,206 (1,232) 5,854,985

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other
financing sources (uses) over
expenditures $ 19 $19 (18,848,670)

Fund balances, beginning of year (19) 18,848,651

Fund balances, end of year $ ./ ($19)
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PROPRIETARY FUND

Proprietary Funds are used to account for government activities that are
similar to business operations in the commercial sector or the funds used
when the reporting focus is on determining net income, financial position
and changes in financial position.

Internal Service/Risk Management Fund - This fund is used to account
for and finance all uninsured risks of loss.
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Boulder County, Colorado

PROPRIETARY FUND-
INTERNAL SERVICE/RISK MANAGEMENT

BALANCE SHEET

December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

2000
ASSETS

1999

Current assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Interest Receivable
County goods and services receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Estimated health and dental claims
Estimated insurance ctaims
Other Liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Contributed capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

86

$4,052,179
62,989
428,833
29,027
18,252

$4,591,880

$88,938
5,538
6,648

1,057,793
2,099,359

15,127
3,273,403

1,913,520
(595,043)
1,318,417

$4,591,880

$3,720,285
65,817
434,426
8,329
15,000

$4,243,917

$105,174
33,291
6,261

1,489,832
1,390,311

8,103
3,032,972

1,913,520
(702,575)
1,210,945

$4,243,917



Boulder County, Colorado

PROPRIETARY FUND-
INTERNAL SERVICE/RISK MANAGEMENT

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT)-

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Operating Revenue
Charges for services
Charges for services - other funds
Contributions - employee
Contributions - County
Contributions - miscellaneous
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

$33,581 $46,446 $12,865 $38,504
1,167,767 1,216,565 48,798 1,319,370
1,700,458 1,638,127 (62,331) 1,365,652
5,062,329 5,070,879 8,550 4,052,098
262,902 156,687 (106,215) 239,750

19,462 19,462 22,541
8,227,037 8,148,166 (78,871) 7,037,915

Operating expenses
General government
General administration
Property and casualty claims
Health and dental claims
Workers' compensation claims

Total expenses

Net operating loss

Nonoperating revenue
Interest on investments

Income (loss) before operating transfer

Operating transfer in

171,103
1,038,379
6,652,448
816,222

8,678,152

(451,115)

165,000

(286,115)

169,899
1,038,379
6,335,563
816,222

8,360,063

(211,897)

304,982

93,085

14,447

1,204 150,093
843,790

316,885 7,235,852
568,540

318,089 8,798,275

239,218 (1,760,360)

139,982 268,067

379,200 (1,492,293)

Net Income (Loss)

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit),
beginning of year

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit),
end of year

($286,115)

87

107,532

(702,575)

($595,043)

$379,200 (1,492,293)

789,718

($702,575)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds Account for funds held by Boulder County in a custodial
capacity for individuals, governmental entities and non-public organizations,
as established by resolution or State Statute.

Pension Trust Fund - This fund accounts for the ongoing activities of the
Boulder County Retirement Trust.

Public Trustee Fund - This is an agency organized by the authority of state
statute to account for the funds of the County Public Trustee.

Agency Fund - This fund accounts for assets held by the County in a
custodial capacity for individuals, private organizations, other governmental
entities, and/or other funds. Additionally, the collections of property taxes
of all the taxing entities in the County are initially recorded here.
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Boulder County, Colorado

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

Pension
Trust Agency

Pension Public Agency Totals
Trust Fund Trustee Fund 2000 1999

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash
and investments $3,284 $8,912,023 $8,915,307 $8,477,114

Investments 79,680,787 79,680,787 81,574,407
Restricted cash S453,369 453,369 S381,443
County goods and
seNices receivable 506,121 506,121 485,945

Total assets $80,190,192 $453,369 58,912,023 $89,555,584 $90,918,909

LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable $87,074 $87,074
Undistributed taxes and
other collections $8,448,176 8,448,176 S8,016,334
Due to other funds 463,847 463,847 457,495
Due to other governmental
units $453,369 453,369 381,443

Total liabilities 87,074 453,369 8,912,023 9,452,466 8,855,272

Fund balances
ReseNed for employee
retirement benefits $80,103,118 80,103,118 82,063,637

Total liabilities and
fund balance $80,190,192 $453,369 $8,912,023 $89,555,584 S90,918,909
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Boulder County, Colorado

FIDUCIARY - PENSION TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating revenues
Contributions
Boulder County $3,320,980 $3,032,747 ($288,233) $2,905,959
Boulder County Employees 3,320,980 3,793,888 472,908 3,381,127
Investment earnings (losses) 7,348,785 (4,794,100) (12,142,885) 16,967,918

Total operating revenue 13,990,745 2,032,535 (11,958,210) 23,255,004

Operating expenses
Participant benefits 4,911,740 3,735,119 1,176,621 3,668,646
Administrative expenses 202,810 257,935 (55,125) 179,261

Total operating expenses 5,114,550 3,993,054 1,121,496 3,847,907

Net income (loss) $8,876,195 (1,960,519) ($10,836,714) 19,407,097

Fund balances
beginning of year 82,063,637 62,656,540

Fund balances
end of year $80,103,118 $82,063,637
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Boulder County, Colorado

FIDUCIARY - PUBLIC TRUSTEE FUND AND AGENCY FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2000

Balances at Balances at
January 1, December 31,

2000 Additions Deductions 2000

PUBLIC TRUSTEE FUND

ASSETS

Restricted cash $381,443 $8,872,005 $8,800,079 $453,369 v
LIABILITIES

Due to other
governmental units $381,443 $8,872,005 $8,800,079 $453,369 ./

AGENCY FUND

ASSETS

Cash $8,473,829 $277,335,548 $276,897,354 $8,912,023 "
Property taxes receivable 221,394,463 221,394,463

Total $8,473,829 $498,730,011 $498,291,817 $8,912,023

LIABILITIES

Undistributed taxes and
other collections $8,016,334 $271,546,982 $271,115,140 $8,448,176 v
Due to other funds 457,495 5,788,566 5,782,214 463,847 ./
Due to other
governmental units 221,394,463 221,394,463

Total for agency fund $8,473,829 $498,730,011 $498,291,817 $8,912,023

TOTAL - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Total assets $8,855,272 $507,602,016 $507,091,896 $9,365,392

Total liabilities $8,855,272 $507,602,016 $507,091,896 $9,365,392
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GENERAL AND COMPONENT UNIT FIXED ASSETS

The General and Component Unit Fixed Assets groups accounts for all fixed
assets and capital additions which have been acquired by fund types other
than the trust fund types.
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Boulder County, Colorado

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL AND COMPONENT UNIT
FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE

December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

2000 1999

General and component fixed assets
Land
Buildings
Equipment
Construction in progress

Total general and component unit
fixed assets

Investment in general fixed assets from

Federal grants
State grants
General Fund
Road and Bridge Fund
Social Services Fund
Revenue Sharing Fund
Capital Projects Funds
Conservation Trust
Self Insurance Fund
Private Gift Fund
Open Space Capital Improvement Fund, Bond Series 1994
Open Space Capital Improvement Fund, Bond Series 1996
Gunbarrel General Improvement District Fund
Boulder Regional Comm Center
Emergency Rescue Service
Recycling and Composting Authority (Component Unit)
Health Department (Component Unit)

Total investment in general and
Component Unit fixed assets

94

$222,592,879
57,146,004
31,424,982
11,895,168

$323,059,033

$926,102
680,201

81,213,750
900,146

11,312,500
1,218,229

61,421,611
2,695,569
111,745
193,394

82,790,896
69,333,342

856,491
58,235
10,000

8,804,791
532,031

$323,059,033

$186,872,866
57,144,916
30,556,440
2,626,104

$277,200,326

$826,038
708,311

72,918,437
11,648,545

756,742
963,038

59,112,325
2,083,579

78,086
17,079

55,186,765
69,485,269

856,491

1,932,106
627,515

$277,200,326



Boulder County, Colorado

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL AND COMPONENT UNIT

FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

Year ended December 31, 2000

General and General and
Component Component

Unit Unit
Fixed Assets Fixed Assets
January 1, December 31,

Function and Activity 2000 Additions Deductions 2000

General Government
Administrative Services (Note 1) $6,264,793 $1,784,794 $1,164,872 $6,884,715
Assessor 433,314 49,404 131,972 350,746
County Attorney 74,009 15,714 11,377 78,346
Commissioners 212,986 47,545 73,937 186,594
Community Services Administration (Note 2) 6,647 6,647
Clerk and Recorder 650,815 139,970 142,580 648,205
Veterans Office 5,435 1,507 3,803 3,139
District Attorney 349,357 35,091 48,516 335,932
Land Use 408,304 148,479 105,990 450,793
Pool Vehicles (Note 3) 92,990 66,595 46,871 112,714
Treasurer 96,034 13,791 25,529 84,296
General Government Buildings and Land 49,834,841 6,617,670 4,221,037 52,231,474

Total 58,422,878 8,927,207 5,976,484 61,373,601

Public Safety
Coroner 67,439 8,440 8,782 67,097
Community Corrections 350,976 34,900 59,981 325,895
Child Protection Team 3,767 2,469 6,236
Sheriff 4,673,915 912,732 822,392 4,764,255
Sheriffs Communications Center 83,567 27,600 55,967
Impact Grant 19,094 7,778 11,316
Boulder Regional Communications Ctr 1,317,294 27,098 1,290,196
Transportation 276,899 65,795 59,134 283,560
Buildings and Land 18,490,528 42,305 32,305 18,500,528

Total public safety 25,180,818 1,169,302 1,045,070 25,305,050

Highways and Streets
Road Maintenance 10,909,092 2,393,028 2,485,440 10,816,680
Buildings and Land 1,765,821 1,765,821

Total Highways and Streets 12,674,913 2,393,028 2,485,440 12,582,501

Health and Welfare
Social Services 747,239 115,502 294,760 567,981
Aging Services 56,519 16,311 10,892 61,938
Prevention Connection 0 30,239 6,178 24,061
Longs Peak Energy Conservation 215,562 90,609 86,134 220,037

Total Health and Welfare 1,019,320 252,661 397,964 874,017

Urban Redevelopment and
Housing 52,983 36,742 26,607 63,118

Continued
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Boulder County, Colorado

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL AND COMPONENT UNIT

FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31,2000

General and General and
Component Component

Unit Unit
Fixed Assets Fixed Assets
January 1, December 31,

Function and Activity 2000 Additions Deductions 2000

Culture and Recreation
Fairgrounds Buildings
and Land 55,991,574 5 51 55,991,573

Conservation
Parks 2,076,919 730,863 161,500 2,646,282
Open space acquisition 167,784,327 36,964,811 1,253,963 203,495,175
Extension Office 48,725 2,881 4,731 46,875
Gunbarrel Improvement
District 856,491 856,491

Total Conservation 170,766,462 37,698,555 1,420, 194 207,044,823

Economic Opportunity
Employment and training 192,048 42,834 84,623 150,259
Head Start 196,060 168,735 142,859 221,936
Community Action Program 16,027 2,364 9,623 8,768

Total Economic Opportunity 404, 135 213,933 237,105 380,963

Intergovernmental
Risk Management 13,125 3,734 6,396 10,463

Other related entities
Health Department 114,497 2,658 21,053 96,102
Health Department (Component Unit) 627,515 87,271 182,755 532,031
Recycling and Composting
Authority (Component Unit) 1,932,106 6,872,685 8,804,791

Total General and Component
Unit Fixed Assets $277,200,326 $57,657,776 $11,799,069 $323,059,033
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Boulder County, Colorado

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL AND COMPONENT UNIT

FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

Equipment
and Construction

Function and Activity Land Buildin9s vehicles in progress 2000 1999

General Government
Administrative Services $33,161 $33,161 $6,357,783
Architects 360,489 360,489
Facilities Mgmt 554,065 554,065
Finance 108,175 108,175
Human Resources 52,609 52,609
Info Svcs 3,556,212 3,556,212
Mailin9 & Printing 284,210 284,210
PC Surplus 256,993 256,993
Records Mgmt 65,396 65,396
Replacement Computer Equip 42,489 42,489
Telecommunications 1,546,756 1,546,756
Youth Corp 24,160 24,160
Assessor 350,746 350,746 433,314
County Attorney 78,346 78,346 74,009
Commissioners 186,594 186,594 212,986
Clerk and Recorder 648,205 648,205 650,815
Community Services Admin 6,647 6,647
Veterans Office 3,139 3,139 5,435
District Attorney 335,932 335,932 349,357
Land Use 450,793 450,793 408,304
Pool Vehicles 112,714 112,714
Treasurer 84,296 84,296 96,034
General Government
Bldgs & Land $14,833,715 $33,445,427 $3,952,332 52,231,474 49,834,841
Total general government 14,833,715 33,445,427 9,142,127 3,952,332 61,373,601 58,422,878

Public Safety
Coroner 67,097 67,097 67,439
Community Corrections 325,895 325,895 350,976
Child Protection Team 6,236 6,236 3,767
Impact Grant 11,316 11,316
Sheriff 4,764,255 4,764,255 4,387,962
Sheriffs Comm Center 55,967 55,967
Flood Control 285,953
Boulder Regional
Communications Center 1,290,196 1,290,196 1,317,294
Transportation 283,560 283,560 276,899
Buildin9s and Land 821,770 17,678,758 18,500,528 18,490,528

Total public safety 821,770 17,678,758 6,804,522 25,305,050 25,180,818

Highways and Streets
Road Maintenance 10,816,680 10,816,680 10,909,092
Buildings and Land 894,639 871,182 1,765.821 1,765,821
Total Hi9hways and Streets 894,639 871,182 10,816,680 12,582,501 12,674,913

Continued
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Boulder County, Colorado

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL AND COMPONENT UNIT

FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1999)

Equipment
and Construction

Function and Activity Land Buildings vehicles in progress 2000 1999Health and Welfare
Social Services $ $ $567,981 $ $567,981 $747,239Aging Services 61,938 61,938 56,519Longs Peak Energy Cons 220,037 220,037
Prevention Connection 24,061 24,061 215.562Total Health and Welfare 874,017 874,017 1,019,320

Urban Redevelopment and
Housing 63,118 63,118 52,983

Culture and Recreation
Fairgrounds Buildings
and Land 944,168 5,047,405 5,991,573 5,991,574

Conservation
Parks 2,646,282 2,646,282 2,076,919Open space acquisition 203,391,943 103,232 203,495,175 167,784,327Extension Office 46,875 46,875 48,725Gunbarrel Improvement
District 856,491 856,491 856,491Total Conservation 204,248,434 103.232 2,693,157 207,044,823 170,766,462

Economic Opportunity
Employment and training 150,259 150,259 192,048Head Start 221,936 221,936 196,060Community Action Progra 8,768 8,768 16,027
Total Economic Opportunity 380,963 380,963 404,135

Intergovernmental
Risk Management 10,463 10,463 13,125

Other related entities
Health Department 96,102 96,102 114,49,
Health Department

627,515(Component Unit) 532,031 532,031
Recycling and Composting
Authority (Component

7,942,836 8,804,791 1,932,106Unit) 850,153 11,802
Total Other Refated Entities 850,153 639,935 7,942,836 9,432,924 2,674,118

Total General and Component
$57,146,004 $31,424,982 $11,895,168 $323,059,033 $277,200,326Unit Fixed Assets $222,592,879
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COMPONENT UNITS

Health Department Fund - This fund represents the accounts of the Boulder
County Health Department, a quasi-municipal organization organized by
authority of state statute and resolution of the County Commissioners to
provide various health services to County residents.

Recycling and Composting Authority Fund - This fund represents the
accounts of the Boulder County Recycling and Composting Authority,
a quasi-municipal organization created through an intergovernmental
agreement between Boulder County, the cities of Boulder, Broomfield,
Lafayette, Longmont and Louisville and the towns of Erie, Jamestown,
Lyons, Nederland and Superior to encourage, educate and provide
services related to recycling and composting to County residents.
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Boulder County, Colorado

COMPONENT UNIT • HEALTH DEPARTMENT

STATEMENT OF REVENUE
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE _

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31,2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Revenue
Fees, licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Contributions
Interest and miscellaneous

Total revenue

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

51,062,877 $1,064,769 $1,892 $1,091,894
4,376,131 4,267,686 (108,445) 4,347,725

10,171 10,171 11,880
55,595 83,809 28,214 61,220

5,494,603 5,426,435 (68,168) 5,512,719

1,936,475 1,745,102 191,373 1,436,341
344,152 325,485 18,667 396,990

1,925,782 1,859,952 65,830 1,834,181
1,581,407 1,488,420 92,987 1,645,973
1,168,032 1,099,792 68,240 1,212,039
1,538,918 1,474,187 64,731 1,287,438
678,752 669,087 9,665 371,601
369,768 359,131 10,637 490,408

9,543,286 9,021,156 522,130 8,674,971

(4,048,683) (3,594,721) 453,962 (3,162,252)

Expenditures
Health and welfare
Health services administration
Vital records, lab, data processing
Behavioral health
Family
Community health
Environmental health
Health planning and epidemiology
School health

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures

Other financing sources
Operating transfers in
from primary government 3,554,549 3,554,549 3,292,381

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and other financing sources
over expenditures ($494,134) (40,172) $453,962 130,129

Fund balance, beginning of year 967,044 836,915

Fund balance, end of year $926,872 $967,044
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Boulder County, Colorado

COMPONENT UNIT - RECYCLING AND COMPOSTING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUE
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2000
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Revenue
Intergovernmental

Expenditures
Sanitation
General professional services
Salaries and benefits
General operating supplies
General advertising
General dues and memberships
Capital outlays
Travel
Rent expense

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources
Operating transfers in
from primary government

2000 1999
Variance -
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

$ $ $ $31

341,971 271,343 70,628 174,033
184,000 182,473 1,527 171,875
291,051 32,667 258,384 20,674
5,070 5,070 2,147
9,520 264 9,256 8,092

12,518,976 6,872,685 5,646,291 1,674,730
8,518 5,411 3,107 5,882
3,300 2,750 550 3,350

13,362,406 7,367,593/ 5,994,813 2,060,783

(13,362,406) (7,367,593) 5,994,813 (2,060,752)

13,362,406 7,367,593 -/ (5,994,813) 2,035,752

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and other financing sources
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$
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STATISTICAL SECTION

(UNAUDITED)

The statistical tables are intended to provide a broader understanding of Boulder County
government and the trends in its financial affairs than is possible from the financial statements.

Comment:

At December 31,2000, Boulder County had several debt issues outstanding, but it had no
general obligation bonded indebtedness. Boulder County has also neither billed nor collected
special assessment funds in the last ten fiscal years. Accordingly, the following statistical
tables recommended by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board are not included:

A. Special Assessment Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years

B. Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded
Debt Per Capita - Last Ten Fiscal Years

C. Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded
Debt to Total General Governmental Expenditures - Last Ten Fiscal Years

D. Revenue Bond Coverage - Last Ten Fiscal Years
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR GENERAL PUBLIC HIGHWAYS HEALTH & CONSERVATION
GOVERNMENT SAFETY & STREETS WELFARE

(2) (3) (4)
1997 $36,463,322 $17,296,842 59,309,421 $30,012,143 $23,211,356
1998 $43,739,611 $19,240,383 $10,610,305 526,760,660 $26,664,239
1999 $59,001,819 $21,222,601 $10,819,040 $28,150,984 $33,076,178
2000 $53,791,828 $24,400,127 $10,868,312 $28,985,919 $40,280,094

Source: Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000.

In 1997, the Finance Office of Boulder County restructured expenditure categories to conform with
guidelines published by the Government Finance Officers Association. Expenditures for the
previous six years are presented on the following pages.

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Component Unit, and Expendable
Trust Funds.

(2) General Government is charged with expenditures for the governing body (Board of County
Commissioners), the judicial branch (District Attorney), the Clerk and Recorder, as well
as financial and personnel administration.

(3) Public Safety is charged with expenditures for protection of persons and property,
including traffic engineering. Expenditures for the Coroner's office are also reported here.

(4) Conservation is charged with expenditures for conserving and developing natural resources.
It includes costs for open space, weed control, trails and the fairground.

(5) Economic Opportunity is charged with expenditures for various programs designed to
eliminate or alleviate poverty and its causes. It includes grants such as Head Start,
Work Force Boulder County, and payments to non profits.

(6) Intergovernmental is charged with expenditures made by one level or unit of government to
another. It includes payments to cities and payments to the Recycling Authority.
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TABLE #1

HOUSING SANITATION ECONOMIC INTER. DEBT SERVICE TOTAL
OPPORTUNITY GOVERNMENTAL

(5) (6) PRINCIPAL INTEREST
$790,367 $557,092 $4,839,057 $2,285,809 $3,355,000 $3,724,142 $131,844,551
$873,965 $642,330 $5,801,571 $1,854,169 $5,405,000 $5,011,016 $146,603,249
$934,196 $2,060,783 $5,672,676 $1,876,257 $6,230,000 $4,972,153 $174,016,687

$1,204,369 $7,367,593 $5,605,172 $1,057,813 $9,360,000 $6,431,117 $189,352,344
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR AUXILIARY GENERAL HEALTH JUDICIAL PUBLIC
SERVICES GOVERNMENT SERVICES SAFETY

(2) (3)
1991 $8,926,165 $25,280,418 $5,987,982 $4,010,012 $9,586,739
1992 $10,187,597 $26,527,941 $6,598,441 $4,193,994 $9,902,377
1993 $9,986,196 $27,135,716 $6,657,423 $4,406,004 $10,284,240
1994 $13,442,821 $31,724,934 $6,749,993 $3,525,352 $11,328,718
1995 $11,680,900 $34,474,574 $7,098,714 $3,692,500 $12,009,265
1996 $10,568,711 $38,179,830 $6,884,415 $2,377,941 S12,399, 154

Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Component Unit, and Expendable
Trust Funds,
Auxiliary Services include administration, management and maintenance of parks,
fairgrounds, and trails, soil conservation, agricultural extension and land acquisition
(including open space purchases),
General Government includes ordinary operations such as county administration, planning
and zoning and other community services and activities not included in Auxiliary Services,
Capital Projects includes engineering fees,
In 1994, total expenditures increased due to increased expenditures in Auxiliary Services
and Capital Projects,

Auxiliary Services - due to increased expenditures for land acquisition
in the General Fund
Capital Projects - due to the sale of open space bonds and subsequent
expenditure of a significant portion of the proceeds

In 1995, total expenditures increased due to the expenditure of the bulk of the proceeds
of the 1994 open space bonds,
In 1996, total expenditures increased due to initiation of interest payments on the 1996
open space bonds and initiation of principal payments on the 1994 open space bonds
(previously interest payments only),

(3)

(2)

(4 )
(5)

Source: Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1991 through 1996
Notes:

(1)
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TABLE #1 (continued)

SOCIAL ROADS & CAPITAL DEBT SERVICE TOTAL
SERVICES BRIDGES PROJECTS

(4) PRINCIPAL INTEREST (5)
$19,494,902 $9,106,457 $4,561,924 $1,608,127 $751,374 $89,314,100
$20,141,873 $8,170,247 $2,290,080 $1,704,378 $654,123 $90,371,051
$21,556,240 $8,706,973 $1,721,095 $1,810,117 $597,762 $92,861,766
$23,175,078 $9,707,544 $15,836,403 $1,955,000 $458,482 $117,904,325
$21,774,410 $10,821,176 $34,255,840 $2,215,000 $764,352 $138,786,731
$22,295,581 $10,675,408 $25,029,688 $5,525,000 $3,898,417 $137,834,145
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
RATIO COMPOSITION OF GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR GENERAL PUBLIC HIGHWAYS HEALTH & CONSERVATION
GOVERNMENT SAFETY & STREETS WELFARE

(2) (3) (4)
1997 27.66% 13.12% 7.06% 22.76% 17.61%
1998 29.84% 13.12% 7.24% 18.25% 18.19%
1999 33.91% 12.20% 6.22% 16.18% 19.01%
2000 28.41% 12.89% 5.74% 15.31% 21.27%

Source: Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1997, 1998,1999 and 2000.

In 1997, the Finance Office of Boulder County restructured expenditure categories to conform with
guidelines published by the Government Finance Officers Association. Expenditures for the
previous six years are presented on the following pages.

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Component Unit, and Expendable
Trust Funds.

(2) General Government is charged with expenditures for the governing body (Board of County
Commissioners), the judicial branch (District Attorney), the Clerk and Recorder, as well
as financial and personnel administration.

(3) Public Safety is charged with expenditures for protection of persons and property,
including traffic engineering. Expenditures for the Coroner's office are also reported here.

(4) Conservation is charged with expenditures for conserving and developing natural resources.
It includes costs for open space, weed control, trails and the fairground.

(5) Economic Opportunity is charged with expenditures for various programs designed to
eliminate or alleviate poverty and its causes. It includes grants such as Head Start,
Work Force Boulder County, and payments to non profits.

(6) Intergovernmental is charged with expenditures made by one level or unit of government to
another. It includes payments to cities and payments to the Recycling Authority.
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TABLE #2

HOUSING SANITATION ECONOMIC INTER- DEBT SERVICE TOTAL
OPPORTUNITY GOVERNMENTAL

(5) (6) PRINCIPAL INTEREST
0.60% 0.42% 3.67% 1.73% 2.54% 2.82% 100.00%
0.60% 0.44% 3.96% 1.26% 3.69% 3.42% 100.00%
0.54% 1.18% 3.26% 1.08% 3.58% 2.86% 100.00%
0.64% 3.89% 2.96% 0.56% 4.94% 3.40% 100.00%
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
RATIO COMPOSITION OF GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR AUXILIARY GENERAL HEALTH JUDICIAL PUBLIC
SERVICES GOVERNMENT SERVICES %OF SAFETY

%OF %OF %OF TOTAL %OF
TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

1991 9.99% 28.31% 6.70% 4.49% 10.73%
1992 11.27% 29.35% 7.30% 4.64% 10.96%
1993 10.75% 29.22% 7.17% 4.74% 11.07%
1994 11.40% 26.91% 5.72% 2.99% 9.61%
1995 8.42% 24.84% 5.11% 2.66% 8.65%
1996 7.67% 27.70% 4.99% 1.73% 9.00%

Source: Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1991 through 1996

Notes:

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Component Unit, and
Expendabie Trust Funds.

(2) In 1994 and 1995, expenditures increased due to the saie of open space bonds and
subsequent expenditure of a significant portion of the proceeds.

(3) In 1996, expenditures increased due to initiation of interest payments on the 1996
open space bonds and initiation of principal payments on the 1994 open space
bonds (previously interest payments only).
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TABLE #2 (continued)

SOCIAL ROADS & CAPITAL DEBT SERVICE TOTAL
SERVICES BRIDGES PROJECTS PRINCIPAL INTEREST %OF

%OF %OF %OF %OF %OF TOTAL
TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

21.83% 10.20% 5.11% 1.80% 0.84% 100.00%
22.29% 9.04% 2.53% 1.89% 0.72% 100.00%
23.21% 9.38% 1.85% 1.95% 0.64% 100.00%
19.66% 8.23% 13.43% 1.66% 0.39% 100.00%
15.69% 7.80% 24.68% 1.60% 0.55% 100.00%
16.18% 7.75% 18.16% 4.01% 2.83% 100.00%
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR TAXES LICENSES INTEREST ON INTER-
& PERMITS INVESTMENTS GOVERNMENTAL

1991 $45,463,740 $1,943,938 $2,105,720 $25,442,738
1992 $48,628,099 $3,717,343 $1,527,404 $26,754,738
1993 $51,052,007 $1,989,958 $1,193,630 $29,460,910
1994 $60,202,473 $1,778,266 $2,212,907 $32,619,190
1995 $66,786,584 $1,820,443 $3,493,428 $33,314,651
1996 $71,549,460 $1,427,696 $4,595,809 $34,468,687
1997 $76,017,029 $1,544,551 $3,657,705 $34,613,723
1998 $81,835,935 $1,671,887 $5,487,684 $32,329,421
1999 $89,378,688 $1,848,813 $4,774,842 $33,809,866
2000 $97,214,983 $1,913,886 $7,303,057 $34,868,100

Source: Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1991 through 2000

Notes:

(1) Includes the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Component Unit,
and Expendable Trust Funds.
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TABLE #3

CHARGES FINES & CONTRIBUTIONS TOTAL
FOR FORFEITURES & OTHER REVENUES

SERVICES REVENUES
$5,231,952 $107,863 $5,856,150 $86,152,101
$6,231,084 $104,936 $6,271,396 $93,235,000
$6,944,803 $146,319 $6,451,819 $97,239,446
$7,697,762 $182,443 $6,286,082 $110,979,123
$7,123,394 $227,263 $5,053,202 $117,818,965
$7,375,975 $314,599 $5,961,936 $125,694,162
$7,713,275 $331,952 $5,345,681 $129,223,916
$9,492,240 $376,095 $6,159,321 $137,352,583
$10,664,234 $388,252 $14,529,835 $155,394,530
$10,329,119 $337,849 $9,943,184 $161,910,178
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
RATIO COMPOSITION OF GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR TAXES LICENSES INTEREST ON INTER-
%OF & PERMITS INVESTMENTS GOVERNMENTAL
TOTAL %OF %OF %OF

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

1991 52.77% 2.26% 2.44% 29.53%
1992 52.16% 3.99% 1.64% 28.70%
1993 52.50% 2.05% 1.23% 30.30%
1994 54.25% 1.60% 1.99% 29.39%
1995 56.69% 1.55% 2.97% 28.28%
1996 56.92% 1.14% 3.66% 27.42%
1997 58.83% 1.20% 2.83% 26.79%
1998 59.58% 1.22% 4.00% 23.54%
1999 57.52% 1.19% 3.07% 21.76%
2000 60.04% 1.18% 4.51% 21.54%

Source: Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1991 through 2000

Notes:

(1) Includes the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Component Unit,
and Expendable Trust Funds.
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TABLE #4

CHARGES FINES & CONTRIBUTIONS TOTAL
FOR FORFEITURES & OTHER REVENUES

SERVICES %OF REVENUES %OF
%OF TOTAL %OF TOTAL
TOTAL TOTAL

6.07% 0.13% 6.80% 100.00%
6.68% 0.11% 6.73% 100.00%
7.14% 0.15% 6.63% 100.00%
6.94% 0.16% 5.66% 100.00%
6.05% 0.19% 4.29% 100.00%
5.87% 0.25% 4.74% 100.00%
5.97% 0.26% 4.14% 100.00%
6.91% 0.27% 4.48% 100.00%
6.86% 0.25% 9.35% 100.00%
6.38% 0.21% 6.14% 100.00%
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE #5

YEAR PROPERTY %OF SPECIFIC %OF SALES %OF TOTAL %OF
TAX TOTAL OWNERSHIP TOTAL TAX (1) TOTAL (1) TOTAL

1991 $42,400,343 93.26% $3,063,397 6.74% - - $45,463,740 100.00%
1992 $45,677,201 93.93% $2,950,898 6.07% - - $48,628.099 100.00%
1993 $47,817,648 93.66% $3,234,359 6.34% - - $51,052,007 100.00%
1994 $50,419,018 83.75% $3,910,810 6.50% $5,872,645 9.75% $60,202,473 100.00'1<,
1995 $53,148,350 79.58% $4,310,322 6.45% $9,327,912 13.97% $66,786,584 100.00'1<,
1996 $56,999,212 79.66% $4,712,690 6.59% $9,837,558 13.75% $71,549,460 100.00%
1997 $60,140,645 79.11% $5,186,250 6.82% $10,690,132 14.06% $76,017,027 100.00%
1998 $64,043,688 78.26% $5,578,364 6.82% $12,213,883 14.92% $81,835,935 100.00%
1999 $68,948,898 77,14% $6,173,905 6.91% $14,255,885 15.95% $89,378,688 100.00%
2000 $72,931,355 75.02% $6,857,456 7.05% $17,426,172 17.93% $97,214,983 100.00%

Source: Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1991 through 2000

Notes:

(1) Boulder County had no Sales Tax prior to January 1, 1994.
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE #6

TAX TOTAL CURRENT PERCENT OF PRIOR YEARS' RATIO OF UNPAID UNPAID RATIO OF ALL

YEAR! TAX YEAR'S CURRENT TAXES TOTAL TAX CURRENT PRIOR UNPAID

COLLECTED LEVY TAXES TAXES COLLECTED COLLECTED YEAR'S YEARS' TAXES

YEAR (1) COLLECTED COLLECTED (2) & (3) TOTAL TAX TAXES TAXES TO TOTAL

TOTAL TAX (2) TAX LEVY

LEVY

1990/1991 $42,853,083 $42,525,424 99.24% ($125,081) 98.94% $327,659 $910,077 2.12%
1991/1992 $46,025,367 $45,593,906 99.06% $83,295 99.24% $431,461 $771,995 1.68%
1992/1993 $47,395,882 $47,255,885 99,70% $561,763 100.89% $139,997 $529,833 1.12%
1993/1994 $50,413,062 $50,232,221 99,64% $186,797 100.01% $180,841 $199,295 0.40%
1994/1995 $53,274,497 $53,100,149 99.67% $48,201 99.76% $174,348 $295,008 0.55%
1995/1996 $56,925,709 $56,790,488 99.76% $208,724 100.13% $135,221 $106,680 0.19%
1996/1997 $60,808,622 $60,338,865 99.23% ($198,218) 98.90% $469,757 $508,918 0.84%
1997/1998 $64,601,011 $64,141,135 99.29% ($97,447) 99.14% $459,876 $955,395 1.48%
1998/1999 $69,290,373 $68,867,420 99.39% $301,125 99.82% $422,953 $568,165 0,82%
1999/2000 $73,168,671 $72,844,544 99,56% $191,420 99.82% $324,127 $236,221 0.32%

Sources:

Notes:
(1)

(2)

(3)

Boulder County Treasurer
Financial Statements, Boulder County, Colorado, 1991 through 2000

Tolal Tax Levy does not include levies for Urban Renewal Districts (ex: 1998 Assessed
value reported on Table #7 includes $54,217,220 assessed values for Urban Renewal
Districts, but levies for those districts are not included in Bouider County's Total Tax
Levy).
Generally, fluctuations in Prior Years' Taxes amounts from year to year are due to the
method of updating data. Prior Year's Taxes are for previous 6 years. The Treasurer's office
reports all taxes collected for previous years as "Prior Years' Taxes," Unpaid Prior Years'
balance is updated each year; all unpaid tax balances over 6 years old are deleted and the
previous year's uncollected is added,
1993/1994 Prior Year's Taxes Collected includes amounts collected for penalties and
interest.
The negative amount in Prior Years' Taxes Collected in 1990/1991 refiects a District Court
decision overturning the County Assessor's 1988 reclassification of property. Return of a
proportionate share of prior year's taxes was required.
The negative amount in Prior Years' Taxes Collected in 1996/1997 and 1997/1998 results
from refund of a portion of 1994,1995,1996 and 1997 taxes for properties.
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BOULDER COUNTY. COLORADO I

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR REAL PROPERTY PERSONAL PROPERTY (1) EXEMPTIONS
ASSESSED ESTIMATED ASSESSED ESTIMATED REAL

VALUE ACTUAL VALUE VALUE ACTUAL VALUE PROPERTY

1991 $1,841,579,005 $9,355,160,761 $253.506,045 $1,287,802,371 $848,647,684
1992 $1,896,094,704 $9,650,716,346 $259,343,706 $1,320,003,975 $860,094,464
1993 $2,011,681,619 $11,085,409,275 $316,051,411 $1,741,607,244 $878,785,462
1994 $2,099,075,692 $12,090,345,462 $307,841,308 $1,773,117,754 $713,523,330
1995 $2,425,696,288 $16,713,110,925 $319,427,652 $2,200,864,885 $821,444,380
1996 $2,500,051,742 $17,399,487,250 $359,508,698 $2,502,055,018 $835,441,990
1997 $2,683,676,312 $19,414,798,587 $389,528,715 $2,818,008,111 $955,891,030
1998 $2,782,558,686 $19,383,373,159 $436,450,684 $3,040,326,343 $957,782,469
1999 $3,292,784,680 $25,591,553,403 $473,096,100 $1,631,365,861 $890,471,906
2000 $3,462,384,175 $26,805,533,149 $557,301,305 $1,921,728,638 $887,521,378

Sources: Boulder County Assessor's Office
Boulder County Finance Office, Accounting Division Mill Levy Records

Notes:
(1) Exempt Property is not included.
(2) Total includes Urban Renewal Districts (ex:1999 includes $69,535,570 Urban Renewal

District valuations). Because Boulder County tax revenues do not include levies
collected for Urban Renewal Districts, these levies are not included on Table #6.

(3) Ratio of Total Assessed Value to Total Estimated Actual Value represent composite
rates. Specific rates for the various types of property and the levels of valuation are
set each year by the Colorado State Legislature.

Rates: 1989 -1990 - Residential assessed value = 15% Other assessed value = 29%
1991 -1992 - Residential assessed value = 14.34% Other assessed value = 29%
1993 -1994 - Residential assessed value = 12.86% Other assessed value = 29%
1995 -1996 - Residential assessed value = 10.36% Other assessed value = 29%
1997 -2000 - Residential assessed valJe = 9.74% Other assessed value = 29%

Levels of value: 1988 level of actual value was used for 1989-1990.
1990 level of actual value was used for 1991-1992.
1992 level of actual value was used for 1993-1994.
1994 level of actual value was used for 1995-1996.
1996 level of actual value was used for 1997-1999.
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TABLE #7

EXEMPTIONS TOTAL (1) & (2) RATIO OF TOTAL
PERSONAL TOTAL ASSESSED ESTIMATED ASSESSED VALUE
PROPERTY EXEMPTIONS VALUE ACTUAL VALUE TO TOTAL ESTIMATED

ACTUAL (3)
$27,514,236 $876,161,920 $2,095,085,050 $10,642,963,132 19.69%
$37,629,576 $897,724,040 $2,155,438,410 $10,970,720,321 19.65%
$35,597,918 $914,383,380 $2,327,733,030 $12,827,016,519 18.15%
$34,659,050 $748,182,380 $2,406,917,000 $13,863,463,216 17.36%
$41,871,770 $863,316,150 $2,745,123,940 $18,913,975,810 14.51%
$39,758,980 $875,200,970 $2,859,560,440 $19,901,542,268 14.37%
$37,590,990 $993,482,020 $3,073,205,027 $22,232,806,698 13.82%
$38,174,921 $995,957,390 $3,219,009,370 $22,423,699,502 14.36%
$127,939,974 $1,018,411,880 $3,765,880,780 $27,222,919,264 13.83%
$142,854,402 $1,030,375,780 $4,019,685,480 $28,727,261,787 13.99%
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN ASSESSED/COLLECTED YEARS

Tax rates are per $1,000 assessed valuation (a rate of 1,000 results in $1 of revenue for every
$1,000 of assessed valuation)

91/92 92/93 93/94 94/95 95/96 96/97 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01
BOULDER COUNTY 22,245 22,245 21,935 22,245 20,897 21,447 21,243 21,762 19,682 19,835

SCHOOL DISTRICTS
Boulder Valley (RE2) 50,101 51605 48,920 50,349 45,640 46,743 45,344 50,356 44000 42,890
Park (R-3) 45,586 45584 45,585 45,585 43,569 43,393 42,542 42,518 37,798 36860
St Vrain (RE1J) 51,354 51,120 50,716 50,452 48,432 48,393 50,022 49,635 44,096 42,173
Thompson (R-2J) 50855 51,528 50925 50,598 47,545 51.257 48.240 48,074 52,796 53,027

CITIES & TOWNS
City of Boulder 9,981 9981 9,833 9,981 9,189 9,666 11,428 11,438 10502 10908
City of Broomfield 13,894 13,894 13,894 13,894 13894 13,894 13,894 13,894 13,894 13,894
Town of Erie 12,824 12,824 12,824 12,824 10,964 10,165 8,435 7,654 7,288 7.288
Town of Jamestown 9,039 9,039 9,039 9,039 7,244 12,621 13,390 12,320 13,289 13289
City of Lafayette 10,096 10096 10,096 15,665 13,629 13,009 13,817 13,034 11,352 11,860
City of Longmont 13,420 13,420 13,420 13,420 13,420 13,420 13,420 13,420 13,420 13,420
City of Louisville 5,898 5,862 5,820 5,820 5,457 5.246 5,246 5,184 4643 4,767
Town of Lyons 19,522 19,522 19,522 19,522 17,726 17,542 16.211 17,156 15,205 15,205
Town of Nederland 17,359 17,274 17,274 17,274 14,440 14,440 15,486 16,210 14,982 15,546
Town of Superior 8,124 5,864 2,492 3,006 V09 2,737 2,727 2,594 2,279 2,144
Town of Ward 5,485 5,485 5,485 5,379 5,416 5,416 4,807 5,481 4.232 4,230

WATER/SANITATION
Allen spark (W&S) 4,231 4231 4,231 4,231 4,058 4.237 4,136 4,381 3,906 4,058
Baseline (W) 7,000 7,000 5000 5,000 3,400 1,000 0,932 0,985 0,985 0,985
Boulder Co, (W) 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0000 0000 0,000 0000 29,160
Brownsville (W&S) 17,442 17,376 7,607 7,607 7.268 7,493 7,897 8,145 7,846 8,084
Erie (W&S) 3,257 3,257 1,500 1,500 0000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000
Hoover Hill (W&S) 4,491 7,490 7,118 7,229 6,833 7,003 6,335 10,105 9,727 5,979
Knollwood 0N) 3,793 3,989 3,800 3800 3,730 3,909 3,914 4,152 3,786 3,967
Left Hand (W&S) 12.000 12.000 11,110 11,110 11.110 11,480 18,136 18,350 18,050 19,364
Niwot (s) 0,702 0,702 0,702 0,000 0,000 0000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000
Northern Colo 0N) 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Pine Brook 0N) 7,423 7,423 7,423 11,000 8,860 8,870 8380 7,699 7,490 7,800
St Vrain Left Hand 0N) 0,437 0,432 0,432 0,400 0,368 0,368 0,351 0,357 3.280 3,030
Shannon Estates 0N) 0,895 0,895 0895 0,943 0,943 0,863 0,943 0,943 0,943 0,917

Sources:
Notes:

Boulder County Finance Office, Accounting Division Mill Levy Records

W - Water District, S = Sanitation District, W&S :;:Water & Sanitation District
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TABLE #8
91/92 92/93 93/94 94/95 95/96 96/97 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01

FIRE DISTRICTS
Allenspark 6.519 6.519 6.519 6.519 6.303 6.277 5.986 6.124 5.257 5.470
Berthoud 9.047 9.047 9.047 9.047 8.135 8.128 8.128 8.128 7.674 8.924
Boulder Heights 7.249 7.249 6.752 6.752 6.001 6.001 6.001 6.001 5.673 7.992
Boulder Rural 2.472 2.470 2.410 2.410 2.405 4.405 4.405 4.405 4.405 4.405

Cherryvale 4.592 4.592 4.497 4.497 3.482 6.666 6.609 7.055 6.764 6.650
Clover Basin 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 30.000 31.920 31.920 31.920 31.920
Coal Creek 9.005 8.678 8.678 8.678 8.678 8.000 8000 8.200 8.200 8.000
Eldorado Spgs-Marshall 5.263 5.263 4.699 4.699 4.339 4.391 4.110 4.110 4.110 4.110
Four Mile 10.092 11.476 11.154 11.154 8.572 9.060 7.292 7.292 7.292 7.292
Gold Hill 4.499 5.025 4.973 4.973 3.937 4.167 3.852 3.863 3.746 3.746
High Country 5.348 5.689 5.137 5.137 6.872 6.687 6.402 6.439 6.439 6.439
Hygiene 0.725 0.710 0.669 0.669 0.622 1.655 1.750 3.004 2.750 2.774
Indian Peaks 4.193 4.193 3.894 3.894 3.514 3698 3.590 3.603 3.112 3292
Lafayette Rural 6.000 5.450 4.440 4.440 2.470 2.300 1.776 1.776 1.776 1.776
Left Hand 13.998 13.770 9.110 9.110 6.497 14.007 13.637 13.431 11.967 6.207
Longmont 0.000 0000 0.000 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Louisville 3.457 3.385 3.385 3385 3.186 3.186 3.186 3.186 3.186 3186
Lyons 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 6.568 6.404 5.581 5.776 4.991 5.224
Mountain View Fire Dist 9.664 9.731 9.732 9.732 9.322 8.781 9.337 9.573 9.085 8.917
Nederland 5.713 6.070 6.070 6.070 5.706 7.500 7.500 11.690 12.147 12.432
North Metro 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 8.552
Pine Brook Hills 5.910 6.146 5.643 5.643 4.689 4689 4.689 4689 4.689 6.189

Sugarloaf 5.228 5.228 4.944 4.944 4.053 7.671 6.915 6.915 6.611 6.611

Sunshine 6.436 6.436 5.844 5.844 4.689 4.689 4.481 8.480 8.480 8.480
Nest Adams County 8.643 8.643 8657 8.657 8.831 8.892 9.036 8.600 8551 0.000
SPECIAL DISTRICTS
287/42 Gen. Improvement 0.000 0.000 0000 0000 0.000 0000 0.000 0.000 0000 50.000
Boulder Central 9.990 9.990 9.300 9.300 8.111 8.375 8.242 6.623 6.526 6.575
Broomfield Village Metro 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 41.000 41.000
Colo Tech Cntr. Metro 31.000 38.058 56.698 56.698 57.502 39.000 32.234 30000 25000 25000
Downtown Boulder 0.000 0.000 0000 0.000 0.000 0000 0.000 0.000 5.361 5.175
Estes Valley Rec 2.106 2.106 2.104 2.104 2.061 2.061 1972 2.034 1.691 1.505
Fairways Metro 9.678 7.077 6.312 6.312 4.901 4.963 4.691 4.691 4.545 3.651
Forest Glen Transit 0.000 0000 0.000 0.000 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.490

Gunbarrel Estates 3.649 3.649 3.649 3.649 3.203 3.203 3.656 3861 3616 3.628

Gunbarrel General Imp 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.410 4.994 4.402 5.624 5234 5.234

Interlocken Consolidated 20.000 27.240 27.240 27.274 27.240 27.240 27.240 27.240 27.240 27.240
Interlocken Metro Dist 0.000 0.000 0000 0.000 0000 0.000 0000 0.000 27.240 27.240
Lafayette City Cntr GID 0.000 0.000 0000 0000 0000 0.000 0.000 17.000 16.745 17.000
Lafayette Tech Center 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 25.000

Longmont Downtown 3.310 3.310 3.310 3.310 3.310 3310 3.310 3.310 3.310 3.310
Longmont General 11.947 6798 6.798 6.798 6.798 6.798 6.798 6.798 6.798 6.798
Midcities Metro Dis! 2 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 27.000 27.000
Superior Metro #1 25.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0000 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Superior Metro #2 25.064 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25000
Superior Metro #3 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 40.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000
University Hills 4.984 4.984 4.800 4.800 3.863 4.040 3.327 3.424 3.344 3.163
Urban Drainage & Flood 0696 0.696 0.696 0.696 0696 0.696 0.668 0.676 0583 0594
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
PROPERTY TAX RATES
COUNTY LEVY DETAILED BY FUND
LAST TEN ASSESSED/COLLECTED YEARS

BOULDER COUNTY

TABLE #9

YEAR GENERAL ROAD & PUBLIC SOLID CONTIN- DEVELOP- RETIRE- SELF CAPITAL JUDGE- TOTAL
FUND BRIDGE WELFARE WASTE GENCY MENTAL MENT INSUR- EXPEN- MENT ALL

FUND FUND FUND FUND DISABILITY FUND ANCE DITURE LEVY COU~TY
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

(1)
1991/92 14.493 2.031 2.482 0.123 0.000 0.280 0.579 0.433 1.514 0.310 22.245
1992/93 14.920 1.969 2.562 0.144 0.000 0.264 0590 0.432 1.364 0.000 22.245
1993/94 14.883 1.824 2.401 0.000 0.000 0.250 0.505 0.406 1.666 0.000 21.935
1994/95 16.282 1.778 1.833 0.000 0.000 0.270 0.566 0.000 1.516 0.000 22.245
1995/96 15.407 1.561 1.696 0.000 0.000 0.255 0.560 0.000 1.418 0.000 20.897
1996/97 16.936 1.500 1.619 0.000 0.000 0.245 0.557 0.000 0.590 0.000 21.447
1997/98 17.226 1.053 1.087 0.000 0.000 0.236 0.577 0000 1.064 0.000 21.243
1998/99 17.298 1.000 1.123 0.000 0.000 0.256 0.509 0.000 1.576 0.000 21.762
1999/00 15.891 0.709 0.629 0.000 0.000 0.209 0.564 0.000 1.680 0.000 19682
2000/01 15.405 0.500 1.323 0.000 0.000 0.205 0.486 0.000 1.916 0000 19.835

Source: Boulder County Finance Office, Accounting Division Mill Levy Records

Notes:

(1) Boulder County was required to levy .31 mills in 1991 to satisfy a court ordered judgment. The
judgment was completely satisfied by December 31,1992.
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
December 31, 2000

Tolal assessed value, 2000

Debt limitation: 1.5% of assessed value (1)

Debt applicable to limilalion:

Tolal Bonded Debt

Total debl applicable to Iimitalion

Legal debl margin

$4,019,685,480 (2)

$60,295,282

$0

$0

$60,295,282

TABLE #10

Source: Financiai Slatements, Boulder County, Colorado, 2000

(1) As established by Section 30-35-201, C.R.S., 1973

(2) Tolal includes Urban Renewal Districls (ex: 1998 includes $54,217,220 Urban Renewal District
valuations). Because Boulder County lax revenues do nol include levies collecled for Urban
Renewal Dislricts, lhese ievies are not included on Table #6.
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
December 31, 2000

TABLE #11

JURISDICTION NET DEBT PERCENTAGE AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING APPLICABLE TO APPLICABLE TO

BOULDER COUNTY BOULDER COUNTY
BOULDER COUNTY SO n/a $0
SCHOOL DISTRICTS $392,430,738 66.39% $260,531,833
CITIES & TOWNS $21,609,121 100.00% $21,609,121
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICTS $8,655,000 58.82% $5,091,157
WATER & SANITATION DISTRICTS $2,780,000 100.00% $2,780,000
OTHER SPECIAL DISTRICTS $115,568,870 93.94% $108,568,870
TOTAL OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT $541,043,729 $398,580,981

Sources: Boulder County Finance Office (Accounting Division Mill Levy Records)
Tax Districts
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
December 31, 2000

TABLE #12

TAXPAYER TYPE OF BUSINESS TAXPAYER'S TAXPAYER'S
2000 PERCENTAGE OF

ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED
VALUATION VALUATION (1)

Public Service Company of Colorado Energy Utility $60,033,200 1.59%
Amgen Inc. Biotechnology $51,556,150 1.37%
Storage Technology Corporation Computer Systems Design, Manufacture, $51,172,190 1.36%

Marketing & Service

US West Telecommunications Research & $47,104,800 1.25%
Development

Sun Microsystems Inc. Computer Systems $45,383,510 1.21%

IBM Software Development and Computer $39,879,730 1.06%
Systems

Level 3 Communications $27,078,150 0.72%
Pratt Land limited liability Company Property Management and Development $21,812,620 0.58%
Sun Microsystems Inc. Computer Systems $21,029,000 0.56%

Macerich Partnership Retail Shopping Mall $14,543,200 0.39%
Tana Oil & Gas LLC Oil and Gas $11,186,390 0.30%

TOTALS: $390,778,940 9.72%
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
December 31, 2000

TABLE #13

FISCAL POPULATION ANNUAL PER ANNUAL MEDIAN SCHOOL ANNUAL PERCENT OF UNEMPLOYMEN
YEAR (1) (4) POPULATION CAPITA INCOME AGE ENROLLMENT ENROLLMENT SCHOOL RATE

PERCENT INCOME PERCENT (K-12) PERCENT ENROLLMENT (4)
CHANGE (3) CHANGE CHANGE TO

(3) POPULATION
1991 229,970 2.06% $22,373 5.89% 32.01 37,957 1.87% 16.51% 3.7%
1992 233,430 1.50% $23,660 5.75% 3260 39,566 4.24% 16.95% 3.8%
1993 241.325 3.38% $25,451 7.57% 32.20 40,154 1.49% 16.64% 4.5%
1994 247,775 2.67% $26,897 5.68% (2) 41,304 2.86% 16.67% 3.7%
1995 253,850 2.45% $28,448 5.77% (2) 39,391 -4.63% 15.52% 3.9%
1996 260,500 2.62% $29,914 5,15% 34.20 39,588 0.50% 15.20% 3.8%
1997 266,100 2.15% $31,393 4.94% 33.60 40.661 2.71% 15.28% 2.8%
1998 272,700 2.48% (2) (2) 34.20 41,800 2.80% 15.33% 3.3%
1999 286,700 7.74% (2) (2) (2) 40,277 -0.94% 14.05% 2.5%
2000 291,288 6.82% (2) (2) 33.40 42,791 2.37% 14.69% 2.4%

Population Source: For 1989.1991 to 1995, Colorado Division of Local Government, Demographic Section

For 1990, U.S. Department of Commerce, Census Bureau

For 1996, Denver Regional Council of Governments

For 1997,1998.1999 Boulder County Land Use Dept.

For 2000, 2000 US Census

Per Capita Income Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis

Median Age Source: For 1989 to 1993, Colorado Division of Local Government, Demographic Section

For 1996 - 199B, Denver Regional Council of Governments

For 2000, 2000 US Census

School Enrollment Sources: Boulder Valley School District

St. Vrain Valley School District

Unemployment Source: Colorado Department of Labor and Employment

For 2000, 2000 Annual Averages/Monthly Expenditure

Notes:

(1) Figures included in this column represent the most recent data available.

(2) Information not available.

(3) Per Capita Income subject to change based on updated information from U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of

Economic Analysis.

(4) Population and Unemployment subject to change based on updated information from Boulder County

Land Use Dep. and Colorado Department of Labor and Employment.

128



BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
SALARIES OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
December 31, 2000

ELECTED OFFICIALS

TABLE #14

OFFICIAL ANNUAL SALARY
Dislricl #1 Commissioner $63,203
Dislricl #2 Commissioner $63,203
Dislricl #3 Commissioner $56,601
Clerk and Recorder $63,203
Treasurer $63,203
Sheriff $71,293
Coroner $15,996
Assessor $63,203
Districl Attorney $102,500
Surveyor Non-salaried office

APPOINTED DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR ANNUAL SALARY
County Attorney $106,423
Transportation Director $91,573
Parks and Open Space Director Open Position
Land Use Direclor $91,573
Community Services Direclor $91,573
Administralive Services Direclor $101,091
Social Services Director $91,575

Source: Boulder County Personnel Schedule
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUE, NEW CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FISCAL ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUE (1)
COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL INDUSTRIAL AGRICULTURAL NATURAL RESOURCES TOTAL

YEAR

1991 $563,983,457 $1,183,411,801 $319,612,272 $20,457,231 $7,620,290 $2,095.085.051
1992 $585.497,124 $1,229,707.879 $310,919,092 $20.928,701 $8,385.615 $2,155,438,411
1993 $644,304,019 $1,332,685,876 $315,383,965 $21,790,458 $13,568,712 $2,327,733,030
1994 $654,189,489 $1,396.937,064 $318,841,238 $22,567,977 $14,381,232 $2,406,917,000
1995 $733.352,712 $1,629,871,351 $345,795,300 $22,554,242 $13,550,334 $2.745,123,939
1996 $776,895,259 $1,671,165,107 $376,172,608 $22,934,071 $12,393,395 $2,859,560,440
1997 $910,848,547 $1,752,460,551 $375,676,557 $23,329,067 $10.890,307 $3,073.205,029
1998 $973,202,533 $1,813,492,068 $398,814,672 $23,239,155 $10,260,942 $3,219.009,370
1999 $1,170,175,330 $2,087,963,601 $473,778,205 $25,630,419 $8,333,225 $3,765,880,780
2000 $1,334,420,536 $2,180,232,973 $470,562,499 $26,266,664 $8,202,808 $4,019,685,480

Boulder County Assessor's Office & Boulder County Finance Office,
Accounting Division Mill Levy Records
For 1989 - 1995, Bureau of the Census, Construction Statistics Division
For 1996 - 2000, Boulder County Assessor
Sheshunoff Information Services, Inc.

New Construction Source:

Prop Value Sources:

Bank Deposit Source:
Notes:

(1) Assessed Property Value amounts do not include exempt property.
(2) Includes incorporated and unincorporated areas of Boulder County.

As of 1996, commercial and industrial statistics for new construction are no longer collected by the Bureau
of Census. Increases in 1996 are due to data collection method differences between the Bureau of
Census and Boulder County Assessor.

(3) For bank deposit information includes only banks headquartered in Boulder County. Decreases, starting in
1995, are a result offewer banks headquartered in the County.

(4) Information not available.
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TABLE #15

NEW CONSTRUCTION (2) BANK
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS (3)
NUMBER VALUE NUMBER VALUE NUMBER VALUE
OF UNITS OF UNITS OF UNITS

11 $4,206,095 1538 $180,284,525 12 $10,705,575 $1,385,920,000
25 $14,359,284 2691 $281,758,937 16 $8,322,015 $1,470,110,000
28 $13,508,496 2927 $316,908,810 24 $17,212,408 $1,507,027,000
69 $32,459,818 2622 $293,350,107 24 $18,310,886 $1,547,717,000
48 $39,699,135 3062 $297,757,115 25 $14,610,366 $891,545,000
166 $53,529,345 4123 $325,209,791 53 $26,388,138 $902,008,000
125 $58,919,700 4383 $458,997,800 47 $48,969,000 $1,148,467,000
194 $69,559,380 5396 $553,347,430 60 $49,302,410 (4)
105 $97,732,600 5269 $681,204,200 65 $99,156,000 (4)
182 $159,660,345 4737 $680,693,224 58 $102,777,414 (4)
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
December 31, 2000

Enyjronment

Area in Square Miles:
Highest Elevation:
Lowest Elevation:
Average Precipitation:
Average Last Freeze:
Average First Freeze:

Government
County Seat:
Form of Government:

Number of Department Heads:
Number of Other Employees:

parks And Ooen Space
County Parks and Open Space (acres):
County Trails Maintained (miles):
County Environment Programs (people served):
County Outreach/Spec Events (people served):
County Cultural/ Historical Events (people served):

132

750
14.255'
4,986'
18.24"
May 7
Oct 12

Boulder
10 Elected Officials:
Three-Member Board of
County Commissioners;
Assessor; Clerk &
Recorder; Coroner; District
Attorney; .Sheriff; Surveyor;
Treasurer

7
2,158

62,682
81.45
3,755
4,043
2,769



Land Use/Planning/ZQning/Building
Number Qf Permits PrQcessed:
Number Qf Building InspectiQns:
Number Qf ZQning and SubdivisiQn DQckets
PrQcessed (Including NQn-urban Planned
Unit DevelQpments, Special Uses,
SubdivisiQn ExemptiQns, Oil and
Gas DevelQpment Reviews, and
Site Plan ApplicatiQn Reviews):

Community Services (Clients Served)
Aging Services (Qlder residents):
Child ProtectiQn Review Teams (cases):
CQmmunity CQrrectiQns (YQuth& adults
placed in cQmmunity service):

Justice System VQlunteer PrQgram (vQlunteers):
Justice System VQlunteer Program (hQurs Qf service):
Veterans Services (veterans):
Head Start (children):
HQusing Authority (family & seniQr hQusing units):
PrQject Self Sufficiency (single parents and
their families):

Transportation
Miles Qf cQunty maintained road paved:
Miles Qf cQunty maintained road gravel:
Miles Qf cQunty maintained road tQtal:
Mileage Qf rQads within subdivisiQns:
Mileage Qf rQads Qutside Qf subdivisiQns:
CQunty maintained bridges Qver 20 feet in length:
Lane miles Qf cQunty maintained bikeways (CQunty QW
Maintenance EquipmenWehicie Fleet:

SOURCES

BQulder CQunty GQvernment Offices: GQvernment
Parks/Open Space
Land Use/Planning/
ZQning/Building
TranspQrtatiQn
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TABLE #16

2,246
20,102

10
23
42

221

46,809
1,265

5,587
127

11,948
4,900
180
457

150

373.18
312.14
685.32
201.37
483.95

76
56

253 units



Boulder County is located in northern Colorado, USA. The western border of the County is the Continental

Divide. The eastern half of the County is rolling plains, and the western half is mountainous.

,._-..
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_ .•_-----

This map was produced by the Boulder County Geographic Information System (GIS). GIS made its debut
in Boulder County in 1987 with the delivery of a PRIME computer and a 9-track tape containing Arc/Info
version 3.2 software. For ten years prior to that, the Land Use Department had been using a Want 2200
with coordinate geometry (COGO) software to enter mining claim data.

Currently, GIS technology is used by several County departments and offices and has become an integral
part of many government functions. There are several GIS data layers used for scientific analysis, resource
management, development, planning, wildfire hazard identification and mitigation, property assessment,
production mapping and ad-hoc custom products.
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SEC. DISCLOSURE SUBSECTION

The following tables disclose certain information as required by Section (b)(5)(I) of Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

TABLE A: BOULDER COUNTY HISTORY OF FUNDING SOURCES FOR OPEN SPACE
LAND ACQUISITION

TABLE B: PROJECTED OPEN SPACE REVENUES VS. COMMITMENTS

TABLE C: GENERAL FUND INFORMATION

TABLE D: OPEN SPACE SALES/USE TAX COLLECTION HISTORY

Additionally required annual financial information can be found elsewhere in this document:

Letter of Transmittal

Financial Section
Combined Statement Of Revenues, Expenditures And Changes In Fund
Balances - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Capital Project Funds And Discretely Presented
Component Unit

Statistical Section
Table 6 - Historical Property Tax Levies & Collection
Table 7 - History of Assessed Valuation
Table 9 - Historical Property Tax Collections and Mill Levies
Table 12 - Ten Largest Property Taxpayers in the County
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
S.E.C. DISCLOSURE SUBSECTION

Boulder County History of Funding Sources for Open Space Land Acquisition
December 31, 2000

TABLE A

The following table presents a history of the County's resources available or proposed to be used for
the purchase of open space lands.

YEAR GENERAL CONSERVATION GRANTS SALES & BOND TOTAL
FUND TRUST USE TAX PROCEEDS
(1) FUND (2) (3)

1985 724,700 253,616 978,316
1986 1,107,040 405,605 1,512,645
1987 1,137,040 238,585 1,375,625
1988 1,391,117 334,893 1,726,010
1989 1,515,196 283,978 1,799,174
1990 1,715,196 263,785 1,978,981
1991 2,150,000 284,561 2,434,561
1992 1,935,000 301,880 2,236,880
1993 2,089,000 302,864 2,391,864
1994 6,117,808 313,779 5,872,634 35,216,363 47,520,584
1995 3,858,027 417,101 6,665,745 10,940,873
1996 4,199,033 392,010 575,000 7,003,101 35,000,000 47,169,144
1997 3,957,590 440,542 7,609,932 12,008,064
1998 3,957,590 406,988 8,703,742 36,358,000 49,426,320
1999 4,000,000 363,422 25,000 9,603,174 13,991,596
2000 3,800,000 391,513 550,000 10,861,103 34,866,801 50,469,417
2001 (est) 3,800,000 400,000 150,000 11,512,769 50,000,000 65,862,769
Totals 47,454,337 5,795,122 1,300,000 67,832,200 191,441,164 313,822,823

Notes:

1) These are the dollars appropriated at January 1 from the General Fund to the Parks/Open
Space Department specifically for land acquisition. For 1996 through 1999, the total includes
amounts necessary to make the payment on the 1996 series open space bonds.

2) Grant funds from Go Colorado; these are State lottery-related funds.

3) In 1999, the State Department of Revenue audited a vendor's sales tax return and found that
the County had been overpaid for the years 1996 through 1999 by $805,392. The amounts
in the "Sales & Use Tax" column of this table reflect actual collections for these years. The
amount shown for 2000 is the gross expected amount from which the entire adjustment of
$805,392 will be subtracted.
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
S.E.C. DISCLOSURE SUBSECTION
Projected Open Space Revenues vs. Commitments
December 31, 2000
The following table describes the County's long-term open space acquisition program and compares the County's expected
revenues available for open space purchases with current commitments for open space purchases. The estimated revenues and
expenditures shown in the following table are not intended as a prediction of results. The table should be regarded as a planning
document showing how the County currently expects to conduct business in the future. The table assumes that sales lax
collections and General Fund expenditures ~illremain relatively stable with moderate inflation throughout the period covered. It
also assumes thai no substantial borrowing will be undertaken during the period. Changes in any of the assumed facts, such as
changes in land values. tax or spending policies or economic fluctuations, would affect the revenues and expenditures
contemplated in the table.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Revenues:
Sales Tax Collections (1) 11,512,769 15,795,519 16.743,250 17,747.845 18,812,716
General Fund (budgeted) 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000
Carry Forward 0 0 0 0 0
Lottery (2) 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
Carry Forward 2,191.204 0 0 0 0
Interest 175,000 0 0 0 0
Grants 150,000 0 0 0 0
Carry forward Fund 13,504,185 0 0 0 0
Bond Proceeds - 2001 issue 50,000,000 0 0 0 0
Bond Proceeds - 2003 issue 0 0 30,000,000 0 0
Interest Earnings" 2,500,000 0 0 0 0
Total Revenues 84,233.158 19,995,519 50,943,250 21,947.845 23,012,716

Bond payment, series '94 (4,151,263) (4,155,623) (4,182,199) (4,160,450) (4,166,550)
Bond payment, series '96 (3,696,235) (3,696,899) (3,699,055) (3,698,893) (3,697,433)
Bond Payment, series '98 (2,484,840) (2,697,715) (2.705,790) (2,835,790) (2,892,290)
Bond Payment, series '00 (2,200,025) (2,200,025) (2,200,025) (2,200,025) (2,200,025)
Bond Payment, series '01 (986,729) (2,368,150) (2,368,150) (2,553,150) (3,051,028)
Bond Payment, series '03 0 0 (1,203,742) (1,444,490) (1,444,490)
Expenses for other purposes (424,025) (214,042) (214,042) (214,042) (214,042)
Committed" (land/water) (3) (24,276,218) (5,700,534) (4,145,578) (3,845,635) (4,990,874)
Total Exp/Committed (38,219,335) (21,032,988) (20,718,581) (20.952,475) (22,656.732)
Surplus/(Shortfall) 46,013,823 (1,037,469) 30,224,669 995,370 355.984

(1) Assumed for planning purposes to increase 6% annually through 2002. and 3% annually thereafter. Sales taxes have been
adjusted downward in the year 2002 to reflect the expected loss from Broomfield becoming a county. No assurance can be given
that actual results will not vary materially from these assumptions. The tax expires 12/3112009.
(2) Lottery funds from the State of Colorado
(3) There is a commitment on one piece of property of $25,000 per year through 2024, with a $1,000,000 balloon payment in
2025. The amounts shown as "commitments" are options which the County is under no obligation to exercise. The County
can negotiate option terms as required to cover any projected shortfalls.

* The amounts shown as "commitments" are options which the County is under no obligation to exercise. The County
can negotiate option terms as required to cover any projected shortfalls.
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

19,377,098 19,958,410 20,557,610 20,557,610 14,684,007 14684007
3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3800000

0 0 0 0 0 0
400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400000

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

23,577,098 24,158,410 24,757,610 24,757,610 18,884,007 18884007
0 0 0 0 0 0

(3,697,953) (3,695,231 ) (3,694,588) (3,697,920) (3,694,500) 0
(7,772,200) (7,894,200) (8,004,200) (8,036,600) 0 0
(2,900,025) (2,911,525) (2,895,275) (2,852,650) (4,795,025) (4,795,125)
(2,333,773) (2,688,773) (3,224,395) (3,881,838) (2,709,638) (6,408,353)
(1,444,490) (1,444,490) (1,444,490) (1,444,490) (3,869,490) (3,866,578)
(214,042) (214,042) (214,042) (214,042) (214,042) (214,042)

(2,819,368) (186,769) (376,964) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
(21,181,851) (19,035,030) (19,853,954) (20,152,540) (15,307,695) (15,309,098)
2,395,247 5,123,380 4,903,656 4,605,070 3,576,312 3,574,909

Continued
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
S.E.C. DISCLOSURE SUBSECTION
Projected Open Space Revenues vs. Commitments (Continued)
December 31, 2000
The following table describes the County's tong~term open space acquisition program and compares the County's expected
revenues available for open space purchases with current commitments for open space purchases. The estimated revenues and
expenditures shown in the following table are not intended as a prediction of results. The table should be regarded as a planning
document showing how the County currently expects to conduct business in the future. The table assumes that sales tax
collections and General Fund expenditures will remain relatively stable with moderate inflation throughout the period covered. It
also assumes that no substantial borrowing will be undertaken during the period. Changes in any of the assumed facts, such as
changes in land values, tax or spending policies or economic fluctuations. would affect the revenues and expenditures
contemplated in the table.

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Revenues:
Sales Tax Collections (1) 14,684,007 14,684,007 14,684,007 14,684,007 14,684,007
General Fund (budgeted) 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800.000
Carry Forward 0 0 0 0 0
Lottery (2) 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
Carry Forward 0 0 0 0 0
Interest 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0
Carry forward Fund 0 0 0 0 0
Bond Proceeds - 2001 issue 0 0 0 0 0
Bond Proceeds - 2003 issue 0 0 0 0 0
Interest Earnings. 0 0 0 0 0
Total Revenues 18,884,007 18,884,007 18,884,007 18,884,007 18,884,007

Bond payment. series '94 0 0 0 0 0
Bond payment, series '96 0 0 0 0 0
Bond Payment. series '98 0 0 0 0 0
Bond Payment, series '00 (4,794,707) (4,797,937) (4,793.672) (4,796,290) (4,794,290)
Bond Payment, series '01 (6,407,893) (6,404.893) (6,408.523) (6,402,453) (6,406,013)
Bond Payment, series '03 (3,867,728) (3,867,380) (3,868,808) (3,871,295) (3,869,098)
Expenses for other purposes (214,042) (214.042) (214,042) (214,042) (214,042)
Committed. (land/water) (3) (25,000) (25,000) (25.000) (25,000) (25,000)
Total Exp/Commilted (15,309,370) (15,309,252) (15,310,045) (15,309,080) (15,308,442)
Surplus/(Shortfall) 3,574,637 3,574,755 3,573,962 3,574,928 3,575.565

(1) Assumed for planning purposes to increase 6% annually through 2002, and 3% annually thereafter. Sales taxes have been
adjusted downward in the year 2002 to reflect the expected loss from Broomfield becoming a county. No assurance can be given
that actual results will not vary materially from these assumptions. The tax expires 12/31/2009.
(2) Lottery funds from the State of Colorado
(3) There is a commitment on one piece of property of $25,000 per year through 2024, with a $1,000,000 balloon payment in
2025. The amounts shown as "commitments" are options which the County is under no obligation to exercise. The County
can negotiate option terms as required to cover any projected shortfalls.

•.The amounts shown as "commitments" are options which the County is under no obligation to exercise. The County
can negotiate option terms as required to cover any projected shortfalls.
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2017 2018 2019

14,684,007 14,684,007 14,684,007
3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000

0 0 0
400,000 400,000 400,000

0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0

18,884,007 18,884,007 18,884,007
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0

(4,798,600) (4,791,800) (4,785,900)
(6,402,538) (6,408,803) (6,413,303)
(3,866,688) (3,869,938) (3,872,935)
(214,042) (214,042) (214,042)
(25,000) (25,000) (25,000)

(15,306,867) (15,309,582) (15,311,180)
3,577,140 3,574,425 3,572,828
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
S.E.C. DISCLOSURE SUBSECTION

General Fund Information
December 31, 2000

Each year, during its budget process, the Board of Commissioners appropriates monies from
each fund for specific purposes. Monies appropriated to the Park and Open Space Department
for land acquisition are expected to be the primary source for payment of the 1996 Series
Open Space Bonds. Monies in the General Fund balance would also be available,
if necessary, as would those in the County Conservation Trust Fund.

The General Fund, at $82.5 million, is the largest fund in the County's 2001 budget of $172
million. Its primary funding sources are as follows:

Property Tax
Other Revenues (1)
Intergovernmental Revenues
Use of Fund Balance

Total

72.80%
23.20%
4.00%
0%

100.00%

(1) This includes specific ownership taxes. licenses and permits, interest on investments,
Clerk & Recorder's fees, Treasurer's fees and miscellaneous charges for services.

For a discussion of the General Fund balance, see the Transmittal Letter section with that heading.
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
S.E.C. DISCLOSURE SUBSECTION
Open Space Sales/Use Tax Collection History
December 31, 2000

The following table provides the tax collection history for the Open Space Sales and Use Tax.
The tax was effective 1/1/94 and expires 12/31108 (25/100cent).

Month Tax 1994 Net State 1994 1994 1995 Net State 1995 1995
Collected Collection Use Tax Total Collections Use Tax Total

Jan 304,137 5,986 310,123 355,375 42,353 397,728
Feb 315,460 20,910 336,370 402,060 60,462 462,522
Mar 410,380 41,683 452,063 420,289 98,767 519,056
Apr 423,639 58,860 482,499 466,775 61,389 528,164
May 424,065 45,298 469,363 458,130 71,304 529,434
Jun 459,997 47,249 507.246 516,231 88,308 604,539
Jul 452,140 50,850 502,990 460,032 79,937 539,969
Aug 469,426 116,265 585,691 488,860 125,224 614,084
Sep 500.160 61,693 561,853 531,481 105,299 636,780
Oct 447,891 63,084 510,975 470,622 79,807 550,429
Nov 407,695 60,790 468,485 437,364 86,746 524,110
Dec 576,210 108,777 684,987 638,409 120,521 758,930
Totals 5,191,200 681,445 5,872,645 5,645,628 1,020,117 6,665,745
% Increase 108.75% 149.70% 113.50%
over prior year
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TABLE 0

1996 Net State 1996 1996 1997 Net State 1997 1997 1998 Net State 1998 1998
Collections Use Tax Total Collections Use Tax Total Collections Use Tax Total

423,693 61,148 484,841 433,586 97,124 530,710 461,421 109,764 571,185
428,988 75,916 504,904 424,982 65,235 490,217 507,359 109,329 616,688
484,026 70,367 554,393 547,460 84,107 631,567 451,391 119,648 571,039
427,988 83,188 511,176 509,786 101,288 611,074 653,660 150,201 803,861
531,462 86,468 617,930 581,625 100,414 682,039 556,941 144,728 701,669
508,530 104,378 612,908 524,650 102,459 627,109 657,641 156,905 814,546
509,307 101,925 611,232 541,769 139,311 681,080 582,555 148,950 731,505
527,872 94,581 622,453 558,826 126,927 685,753 605,281 131,429 736,710
541,553 67,206 608,759 594,521 116,265 710,786 651,256 145,595 796,851
492,034 89,680 581,714 532,682 122,208 654,890 644,250 182,303 826,553
495,267 74,759 570,026 380,679 90,986 471,665 520,307 120,882 641,189
644,070 78,695 722,765 711,064 131,248 842,312 744,109 147,838 891,947

6,014,790 988,311 7,003,101 6,341,630 1,277,572 7,619,202 7,036,171 1,667,572 8,703,743
106.54% 96.88% 105.06% 105,43% 129.27% 108.80% 110.95% 130.53% 114.23%

Continued
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BOULDER COUNTY, COLORADO
S.E.C. DISCLOSURE SUBSECTION
Open Space Sales/Use Tax Collection History (Continued)
December 31, 1999

The followin9 table provides the tax collection history for the Open Space Sales and Use Tax.
The tax was effective 1/1/94 and expires 12/31/08 (25/100cent).

Month Tax 1999 Net State 1999 1999 2000 Net State 2000 2000
Collected Collections Use Tax Total Collections Use Tax Total

Jan 551,210 120,770 671,980 583,529 150,315 733,844
Feb 564,538 100,830 665,368 567,876 152,221 720,097
Mar 614,291 158,000 772,291 602,378 202,720 805,098
Apr 522,225 162,256 684,481 549,679 156,329 706.008
May 640,083 132,768 772,851 743,631 192,482 936,113
Jun 689,839 210,606 900,445 631,577 203,674 835,251
Jul 724,374 156,511 880,885 691,473 143,501 834,974
Aug 612,799 153,648 766,447 721,977 147,984 869,961
Sep 725,597 159,434 885,031 776,222 128,803 905,025
Oct 649,408 169,339 818,747 731,522 191,028 922,550
Nov 645,794 136,786 782,580 638,875 145,453 784,327
Dec 826,705 175,363 1,002,068 868,620 133,839 1,002,459
Totals 7,766,863 1,836,311 9,603,174 8,107,361 1,948,348 10,055,709
% Increase 110.38% 110.12% 110.33% 104.38% 106.10% 104.71%
over prior year
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